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MISSION

Exploring business opportunities in Green Energy, especially 

in the field of Wind and Solar by installing windmills and solar 

plants for generating and selling renewable energy, mainly 

for railways consumption.

Facilitating cost efficiencies in the energy management for 

Railways by Power Procurement through open bidding as well 

as trading through power exchanges.

Entering upon the consultancy business in Energy Management 

Area including both wind and solar energy projects.
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CHaIRMaN’S MESSagE

dear Shareholders,

it gives me immense pleasure in presenting the annual 
report of your company on the occasion of 4th Annual 
General Meeting; i extend a very warm welcome to all 
the shareholders.

the audited accounts of the Company for the year 
2016-17 along with the directors’ Report, Statutory 
Auditors Report and comments of Comptroller & 
Auditor General of india and the audited accounts 
have already been circulated to you and with your 
permission, i take them as read. 

in Financial year 2016-17, your Company delivered a 
robust performance despite considerable challenges. 
the Company continued to focus on the delivery of 
consistent, competitive, profitable and responsible 
growth. this was another year of exciting business 
solutions, further improvement in execution and 
sustained focus on operational efficiencies.

it is indeed a pleasure to inform you that during 
financial year 2016-17 your company has recorded an 
operating turnover of ` 55.67 crore as against `17.10 
crore during  previous year 2015-16. the “Profit After 
tax” (PAt) for the financial year 2016-17 is ̀ 18.36 crore 
as compared to ` 3.14 crore of previous year 2015-16.

your Company has delivered an outstanding 
performance during the year 2016-17 and meets 
parameters for excellent rating in Mou. however, 
formal communication from dPE in this regard is 
expected in due course.

it is commendable to say that in a short duration 
your Company has achieved many landmarks in 
reducing the ordinary working expenses of Railways 
by facilitating flow of economical tariff during the 
year in the states of Rajasthan, uP (iStS), Maharashtra, 
Gujarat, MP & Jharkhand. 

it is a proud moment to inform that despite stiff 
resistance from State utilities, your company has 
been instrumental in commencement of about 825 
MW (Approx) power during the year on open access 
as deemed distribution licensee. this has resulted 
into a savings of over `1500 crore to Railways in their 
energy bills for the year 2016-17 translating in to 

Despite stiff resistance from State Utilities, 

your company has been instrumental in 

commencement of about 825 MW (Approx) 

power during the year on open access as 

Deemed Distribution Licensee. This has resulted 

into a savings of over `1500 crore to Railways 

in their energy bills for the year 2016-17 

translating in to annualized savings of  

` 2200 crore.
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annualized savings of about ` 2200 crore, in line with 
the prouncement of hon’ble Minister of Railways in 
his Budget Speech 2016-17.

the challenges and stiff resistances from the states in 
issuance of no objection Certificate (noC) required 
for getting open Access prohibited Railways in 
implementing deemed distribution licensee status. 
For redressal of above challenging task, REMCl led 
from the front by filing petition through Zonal Railways 
with various Regulators. REMCl also successfully 
contested & defended the petitions filed by various 
discoms on behalf of Railways. 

harnessing of Renewable Energy Resources assumes 
the top priority for energy security and development 
of clean energy, also for reducing carbon emission. 
in line with this, REMCl has made its presence felt 
in Green Energy Sector as 26 MW Wind Mill plant 
installed at Jaiselmer, Rajasthan, which has generated 
approx. 36 Mus during the year. your company has 
also invited bids for 100 MW Solar Roof top project at 
Railway Building & Roof top spaces of Railway station 
on behalf of Railways & Successfully issued loAs for 
48  MW projects. REMCl is also supported Railways 
in planning further avenues & innovative methods of 
utilization of solar power.

your Company also took initiative for implementation 
of Passenger escalator in Mumbai Area of CR & WR & 
by engaging working agencies through competitive 
bidding & awarded the contracts in a record time of 
six months.

your Company accords highest importance to 
transparency, accountability & equity in all facets of 

its operations, with the aim of enhancing long term 
economic value to all the stakeholders & the society 
at large. 

i am grateful for the guidance provided by Member 
(traction) & other officers from Railway board and co-
operation extended by officers of indian Railways in 
conceptualizing and implementing various initiatives 
taken up by REMCl.

i, on behalf of the Board, would like to place on record 
sincere thanks for the valuable services rendered by 
Statutory Auditors, i.e. M/s AB Bansal & Company, 
Chartered Accountants.

Before i conclude, i must express my sincere thanks 
to our esteemed shareholders, my colleagues on the 
Board of directors, the Ministry of Railways & whole 
REMCl team for their valuable support, advice and 
co-operation.

i acknowledge that organizations are built on a strong-
management stakeholder’s relationship, which is a 
two way channel. i hope the coming years will further 
strengthen our relationship with all stakeholders for a 
sustainable growth and performance of the Company.

Firmly anchored in the traditional wisdom of the past 
and seizing the opportunities in the present, your 
company is poised to excel in the years ahead.

With Best Wishes

Rajeev Mehrotra
Chairman
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dIStINgUISHEd SHaREHOLdERS

the directors of your company have immense pleasure 
in presenting the 4th Annual Report of the company 
together with the audited Financial Statements and 
Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

in Financial year 2016-17, your company delivered a 
robust performance despite considerable challenges. 
the business continued to focus on the delivery of 
consistent, competitive, profitable and responsible 
growth. this was another year of exciting business 
solutions, further improvement in execution and 
sustained focus on operational efficiencies.

it is indeed a pleasure to inform that despite stiff 
resistance from State utilities, your Company facilitated 
flow of power for Railways as deemed  distribution 
licensee (ddl) in the states of Rajasthan & MP 
besides states of, uP (Ctu Point), Maharashtra, Gujarat 
& Jharkhand where power was being taken since 
last year. this has resulted into a savings of about  
` 1500 crore for Railways in their energy bills for the 
year 2016-17 translating in to annualized savings of 
` 2200 crore.

dIRECtORS’ REpORt

Major highlights for the year 2016-17 are:
•	 Almost	 entire	 peak	 power	 upto	 1980	 MW	 of	 IR	

has been tied up from BRBCl ,RGPPl,tAtA, Adani 
& JitPl, out of this, 825 MW power has started 
flowing on open access as deemed distribution 
licensee.

•	 Implementation	 of	 100	 MW	 of	 Solar	 Roof	 top	
project for Zonal Railways have been mandated by 
Railways, out of which loA issued for 48 MW for 
SWR, nR, WR, nCR, RCF & nWR.  

•	 Finalised	contracts	&	issued	the	LOAs	to	successful	
bidders for the Provisions of 33 nos. Passenger 
escalators in Mumbai Area of CR & WR. 

•	 Tenders	 under	 consideration	 for	 Selection	 of	
technical Consultant for feasibility study of 
transmission line project of MGS-hWh route, 
Selection of technical Consultant for feasibility 
study of transmission line project of dli- Bh route, 
Selection of technical Consultant for feasibility 
study of transmission project of JhS-nGP-BZA 
route & Selection of technical Consultant for 
feasibility study of transmission project of hWh-
nGP-CStM route (excluding Raigarh to Paniajob).

•	 Finalised	 tenders	 for	 procurement	 of	 400	 MW	
power on Short term in Southern Region in the 
States of Andhra Pradesh (200 MW), telangana (50 
MW), tamil nadu (120 MW) and Kerala (30 MW). 
Although the power could not flow due to non 
issue of noC by the respective states.

Budget announcements By Hon’ble 
Minister of Railways:

hon’ble Minister for Railway identified 
Power procurement & Renewable Energy for       
Railways as a key Focus areas:

Budget Speech - 2016: “Annualized saving 
of ` 1,300 crore. Further annualized saving of  
` 1,700 crore during the coming year, taking the 
total to ` 3,000 crore.”

your Company is committed to achieve the 
vision of hon’ble MR.
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FINaNCIaL HIgHLIgHtS 

the financial performance of the company for the 
year 2016-17 is given below.

(` In Crore)

particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Authorized Share Capital 150.00 50.00

Subscribed share Capital 70.00 50.00

Reserves & surplus 21.48 3.12

total income/Gross sales 58.49 18.04

total operating income 55.67 17.10

total expenditure 29.82 13.34

Profit/(loss) Before tax(PBt) 28.67 4.70

Provision for taxes including 
deferred tax Expenditure

10.31 1.56

Profit/(loss) after tax (PAt) 18.36 3.14

net Worth 91.48 53.12

BUSINESS pERFORMaNCE 

the commercial operation of its own 26 MW wind 
mill plant located at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan started from 
oct’ 2015 and major power procurement for indian 
Railways (iR) was started from Jan’ 2016 based on bi-
partite agreement entered between REMCl and zonal 
railways, therefore, financial results for the current 
year i.e. 2016-17 is not comparable with financial 
results of previous year on annual basis, since the  
period of operation was only 5.5 month (appx) during 
the previous year including stabilization period of 
two months of Wind Mill. during the year, company 
has achieved operating turnover of ` 55.67 Crore as 
compared to previous year’s operating turnover of ` 
17.10 Crore. the “Profit After tax” (PAt) for the financial 
year 2016-17 is ` 18.36 crore as against ` 3.14 Crore 
of the previous year. 

OUtLOOK 

indian Railways has been consistently working 
towards controlling its energy bill and also to reduce 
its carbon foot prints. A  series of initiatives have been 
planned by Railways through REMCl by adopting 
multi-prolonged strategies including promotion of 
procuring power through bi-lateral arrangements, 

setting up of captive power plants, undertaking power 
trading activities, harnessing solar and wind energy, 
energy efficiency measures etc. 

the company has achieved many landmarks in terms 
of reducing the financial burden of Railways by 
affecting cost efficiencies and reducing energy bills of 
Railways.

your Company is focusing on potential business 
areas of economical power procurement for indian 
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Railways, harnessing renewable energy, resolving 
regulatory issues of Railways, facilitating forecasting & 
Scheduling getting open access etc.

CapItaL StRUCtURE

during the year considering the substantial growth of 
the company, the Authorized Share Capital has been 
enhanced from ` 50 Crore to ` 150 Crore. during the 
year, Company has also increased its paid-up share 
capital from ̀  50 Crore to ̀  70 Crore by issue of further 
equity share in proportion to the existing shareholders

dIVIdENd

the Board of directors of the company have 
recommended for the first time a final dividend of  
` 3.68 crore for the year 2016-17 (i.e. ` 0.525 per 
share to 7 crore equity share) which is  5.26 % of paid 
up capital of the company , subject to the approval of 
shareholders in Annual  General Meeting.

FIXEd dEpOSItS

the Company has not accepted any fixed deposits 
from public during the year.

RESERVES

during the year 2016-17, ` 18.36 crore has been 
transferred to General Reserves by  appropriation 
from profits of the company. Reserve and surplus has 
increased from ` 3.12  crore  as at end of the previous 
years to ` 21.48 crore as at 31st March, 2017.

CONSERVatION OF ENERgY, tECHNOLOgY 
aBSORptION aNd FOREIgN EXCHaNgE  EaRNINg 
aNd OUt gO

the details of conservation/generation of energy, 
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo are as follows:

pLaNNINg OF pROCUREMENt & gENERatION  
FOR ZONaL RaILWaYS:

HaRNESSINg RENEWaBLE  ENERgY:

in order to encapsulate the potential of Renewable 
Energy available in india and addressing the 
challenges of changes in global climate, indian 
Railways is promoting the sustainable development 
and reducing dependence on fossil fuel.

RAILWAY’S VISION FOR RENEWABLE is to Reduce 
Carbon Footprint of indian Railways through Green 
Energy utilization. the Company has made big strides 
in the area of Green Energy and Power Sector, in a 
very short span since inception.

Wind Mill 

26 MW Wind Mill Power Plant at Jaisalmer generated 
approx 35 Million units (Mus) in the previous year. 
Earlier, this power was being utilized by WCR in 
consumer mode availing the banking facility at their 
three tSSs in Rajasthan. WCR has started taking power 
from M/s Jindal india thermal Power ltd (JitPl) at their 
tSSs in Rajasthan through Short term open Assess 
(StoA) as a ‘deemed distribution licensee’ (ddl) 
w.e.f. 10.01.2017 as a result of which the monthly 
energy bills of 26 MW wind power of REMCl for the 

Transmission line tower

Solar rooftop plant
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month of January, February & March 2017 are yet to 
be paid by WCR. REMCl has been advised to supply 
this wind power through open access route to WCR 
as a ‘ddl’ (instead of their earlier consumer mode) at 
their 12 tSSs in Rajasthan.  Accordingly, action is being 
taken by REMCl to supply this 26 MW wind power to 
WCR as a ‘ddl’ at their 12 tSSs in Rajasthan through 
open access route without any banking facility.  

Railway Board has awarded the PMC work for setting-
up of 10.5 MW wind mill plant in tamil nadu for SR on 
EPC mode to REMCl. 

tenders have been invited by REMCl for procurement 
of 35 MW wind power through tariff based bidding for 
its consumption by Zonal Railways at their non-traction 
load as a consumer in the states of Maharashtra, 
Madhya Pradesh, Andhra Pradesh and tamil nadu.

Solar plants

•	 REMCL	has	been	mandated	to	install	100	MW	roof	
top out of 1000 MW  by iR, REMCl is also planning 
to set up solar plant at solar park in the states of 
Rajasthan & MP.

•	 LOA	issued	for	48	MW	for	SWR,	NR,	WR,	NCR,	RCF	
& nWR. Correspondingly, PPA signed for 25 MW 
& PPA for balance 23 MW is in process. tender 
has been floated for 52 MW roof top solar power 
plants for indian Railways.

•	 Your	 company	 is	 actively	 involved	 with	 IR	 to	 set	
up around 100 MW roof top and 500 MW Ground 
mounted Solar Projects.

pROCUREMENt OF ENERgY

iR has heavy financial burden of the energy cost, which 
has touched a figure of ` 13000 Crore (approx.) during 
the year 2015-16.  thus, there was an urgent need for 
immediate corrective measures to restrict the energy 
bills. in pursuit of this mission, REMCl has made 
significant contributions in effecting the savings in 
traction energy bills of iR. in this persuasion, the brief 
details of initiatives taken by REMCl are as under.

pOWER pROCUREMENt FOR INdIaN RaILWaYS 

•	 Your	company	tied	up	a	total	of	about	1980	MW	
power for indian Railways out of which about 
825 MW (Approx) power commenced during 
the year 2016-17. Further, existing traction tariff 
in the states of Chhattisgarh and Andhra Pradesh 
have been negotiated and pursuant to these 
negotiations, the per kWh tariffs have been 
revised to approx. ` 4.99 and ` 4.71 in the states 
of Chhattisgarh and Andhra Pradesh respectively. 

•	 The	 migration	 process	 of	 Railway	 consumer	
mode to deemed distribution licensee have 
been progressively expanded in the states 
of Maharashtra, Gujarat, MP, uP (iStS Points), 
Rajasthan & Jharkhand.

a) Mop allocated 500 MW - 620 MW power from 
RgppL: 

 Commencement of 540 MW economical power 
supply from RGPPl on nomination basis in the 
states of Maharashtra, Gujarat, MP & Jharkhand at 
a landed tariff @ ` 4.70 pu. allocation upto March 
2017.
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B)  Extension of 100 MW power from M/s tata 
power: 

 100 MW power has been extended through Bi-
lateral arrangement on short term basis from tAtA 
in Maharashtra at a tariff of ` 4.68 p.u. 

C)  Operationalization of 577 MW power of JItpL :

 Agreement  for 577 MW Power has been signed 
with JitPl for procurement of power on Medium 
term basis for the states viz. Bihar, odisha, 
MP, Chhattisgarh, uP, Punjab, haryana, delhi & 
Rajasthan at a weighted average tariff @ ` 3.65 
p.u. 

 Power flow on open access has commenced in the 
state of Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan. noC has also 
been obtained for haryana.

d)  Finalisation of bids of 400 MW power on Short 
term in Southern Region:

 REMCl invited bids for procurement of power on 
short term in the states of Andhra Pradesh (200 
MW), telangana (50 MW), tamil nadu (120 MW) 
and Kerala (30 MW). Although the tender was 

finalised in time and letter of Award were also 
issued to the successful bidders, but power flow 
could not commence as concurrence for open 
access was not issued by the state authorities.

E)  Invitation of bids of 396 MW power on Medium 
term in Southern Region

 REMCl invited bids for procurement of power on 
Medium term basis in the state of  Andhra Pradesh 
(200 MW), telangana (50 MW), tamil nadu (96 
MW), RWF, Karnataka (25 MW) and Kerala (25 
MW). RFP was invited for RWF, Karnataka and 
letter of Award was issued to the successful 
bidder. however, MoP has allocated power from 
RGPPl to RWF Karnataka and traction load of 
Karnataka.

F)  Invitation of Bids of 330 MW of power on Medium 
term in Western & Eastern Region:

 REMCl invited bids for procurement of 210 MW 
power in Western Region  (Maharashtra-60 MW, 
MP-50 MW, Gujarat – 50 MW and Chhattisgarh-50 
MW) and 100 MW in Eastern Region (Jharkhand-40 
MW and Bihar-60 MW). this tender was invited 
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in  replacement of RGPPl power beyond March 
2017 but was discharged upon renewal of power 
from RGPPl.

g) Invitation of Bids of 180 MW power on Long term 
in the state of Maharashtra:

 REMCl invited bids for procurement of 180 MW 
power on long term in the state of Maharashtra in 
replacement of power from RGPPl beyond March, 
2017. however, this  tender was discharged upon 
renewal of power from RGPPl.

H) Bhartiya Rail Bijli Company Limited (BRBCL) 
a Joint venture of ntPC ltd. & indian Railways 
having equity partnership in the ratio of 74% & 26 
% , has set up 1000 MW captive thermal power 
plant for Railways in nabinagar Bihar. out of 
Which 900 MW (Ex BRBCl Bus), 755 (Ex tSS) was 
allocated to Railways.

tRaNSMISSION LINE: 

in order to procure economical power supply in 
long run, it is imperative for iR to construct and own 
transmission lines connecting traction drawl points at 
strategic location with iStS points. in pursuance to this 
mission a necessary ground work has been completed 
and accordingly, tender for selection of Consultant 
for delhi-Bharuch had been invited and bids are 
under evaluation and for Mughal Sarai-howrah routes 
tenders have been invited by REMCl, evaluation had 
been done but fund transfer from Railway Board is 
required for issue of loA to the successful bidder & 
Confirmation regarding connectivity from CEA is also 
awaited. 

Initial planning: golden Quadrilateral Routes of 8850 
KM. 

•	 	Delhi	–Mumbai-	 1000	kM	

•	 	Delhi	–Howarah-	 1400	kM	

•	 	Howrah-Chennai-	 1600	kM	

•	 	Howrah-	Mumbai-	 1850	kM

•	 	Delhi-	Chennai-	 1700	kM

•	 	Mumbai-	Chennai		1300	kM 

your company is assisting iR in its plan of development 
of transmission lines projects for iR having direct 
connectivity with iStS network to improve Reliability 
& Reduce Energy cost.

techno-economic study & related survey of power 
sourcing arrangements pertaining to Mumbai – 
Ahmadabad high Speed Rail line work by REMCl is 
also under consideration of national high Speed Rail 
Corporation ltd. 

REgULatORY 

in the regulatory space, your company established 
the status of indian Railways as ‘deemed distribution 
licensee’ under the Railway Act 1989, read in 
conjunction with Electricity Act 2003 in many 
states. REMCl is facilitating Railways in successfully 
contesting the petition filed by WBSEdCl at APtEl. 
it has also facilitated northern Railway in contesting 
petition at haryana, Punjab and East Coast Railway in 
Contesting petition at orissa. Railway has received 
favourable order from haryana. 

OtHER SERVICES

•	 Assisting	Railways	in	Regulatory	Matters.	

•	 Award	 of	 contracts	 for	 commissioning	 of	
Escalators for indian Railways. 

•	 Provision	of	Wind	Mill	 for	Railways	on	EPC	route	
and tariff based bidding route. 

•	 Provision	 of	 CT,	 PT	 &	ABT	metering	 at	 	 GSSs	 &	
tSSs.

tHE StEpS taKEN OR IMpaCt ON CONSERVatION 
OF ENERgY 

in order to fulfill the indian Railways Solar Mission to 
reduce dependence on fossil fuels and keeping in 

Capacity Building programme for Indian Railways 
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line with Budget 2015-16 announcement of hon’ble 
MR for setting up of 1000 MW solar power plant in 
next five years by iR, REMCl has already paved the 
way towards conservation of Energy by successfully 
implementing 26 MW wind mill plant at Jaisalmer 
Rajasthan which has generated over 3.6 crore units  
of electricity so far. the Electricity generated from the 
plant is contributing significantly in partly fulfilling the 
decarbonisation plan of indian Railways.

•	 Further,	REMCL	has	been	mandated	to	install	100	
MW roof top by iR, Work has been awarded for 48 
MW roof top solar power plant for indian Railways 
to the successful bidder & tender has been floated 
for balance 52 MW roof top solar power plants for 
indian Railways.

•	 Project	for	around	300-400	MW	Ground	mounted	
for iR are also being conceived generally on tariff 
based bidding route. 

tECHNOLOgY UpgRadatION

A unit of energy saved is energy generated. to 
achieve the vision of indian Railways in energy 
conservation, REMCl is exploring the possibilities for 
implementing Energy Efficient technologies at Railway 
offices & buildings. thus ,adoption& use of available 
technologies  like provision of lEd light, energy 
efficient ceiling fans, use of star rated equipment, 
automatic switching, energy audit etc will be some of 
the recommendations to achieve the above objective.

FOREIgN EXCHaNgE EaRNINg aNd OUtgO

during the year under review, there is no foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo.

pRESIdENtIaL dIRECtIVE

no Presidential directive was received during the year.

CORpORatE gOVERNaNCE & MaNagEMENt 
dISCUSSION aNd aNaLYSIS REpORt

“Corporate Governance Report” and “Management 
discussion and Analysis Report” forms integral part 
of this directors’ Report and have been placed as 
Annexure – “i” & “ii” respectively. 

CONtRaCtS OR aRRaNgEMENtS WItH RELatEd 
paRtIES UNdER SECtION 188 (1) OF tHE 
COMpaNIES aCt, 2013

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by 
the Company during the financial year with related 
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on 
an arm’s length basis.

your directors draw attention of the members to note 
2.26 to the financial statement which sets our related 
party disclosures. (the detail of contracts entered into 
with related parties in prescribed format aOC-2 is 
placed at ann – III) 

EXtRaCt OF tHE aNNUaL REtURN aS pROVIdEd 
UNdER SECtION 92(3) OF tHE COMpaNIES aCt, 
2013 IS pLaCEd aS aNNEXURE –IV

paRtICULaRS OF LOaNS, gUaRaNtEES OR 
INVEStMENtS UNdER SECtION 186 OF tHE 
COMpaNIES aCt, 2013

during the year the company has not given any loans, 
guarantees or investment under section186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Capacity Building programme for Indian Railways Signing of PPA for Power Procurement

 B
O

a
R

d
 a

N
d

 M
a

N
a

g
E

M
E

N
t R

E
p

O
R

tS



Railway EnERgy ManagEMEnt Co. ltd.

12

FORMaL aNNUaL EVaLUatION OF dIRECtORS 
UNdER SECtION 134(3)(p) OF tHE COMpaNIES 
aCt, 2013

Formal Annual Evaluation of the directors are being 
done by Administrative Ministry. (As per notification 
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dt 05.06.2015 
the provisions of this section shall not apply to a 
Government Company, in case the directors are 
evaluated by the Ministry or department of the Central 
Government etc.)

RISK MaNagEMENt UNdER SECtION 134(3)(n) OF 
COMpaNIES aCt, 2013

1. there are no known technological risks associated 
with the renewable energy wind power project of 
26 MW installed in Rajasthan. A long term power 
purchase agreement with  Railways for 25 years 
is in place ensuring sure flow of income from sale 
of wind energy.

2. Company does not foresee business risk in 
providing consultancy for procurement of power 
for indian Railways through bilateral agreement 
arrangement with power producers at economical 
terms & tariff.

3. Company has robust internal control system and 
procedure in line of holding company.

BOaRd OF dIRECtOR’S & NUMBER OF MEEtINgS 
OF tHE BOaRd

the Board of directors consists of five (5) directors, 
2 directors nominated by Ministry of Railways and 3 
directors nominated by RitES limited. the Board met 
six (6) times during the year for transacting businesses. 

the following are the directors of the Company as on 
date:

Shri Rajeev Mehrotra, Chairman

Shri Arbind Kumar, director 

Shri hari Kumar Bali, director (upto 30.11.2016)

Shri Anil Ghai, director (w.e.f. 01.12.2016) 

Ms niva Singh, director (upto 16.02.2017)

Ms Anju Ranjan, director (w.e.f. 17.02.2017)

Shri Sudhir Garg, director 

KEY MaNagERIaL pERSONNEL (KMp) (section 203 
of the companies act, 2013

Shri Sudhir Kumar Saxena Chief Executive officer 

Shri Sunil Kumar Singh Chief Finance officer   
(w.e.f. 05.01. 2017)

Attendance of the Board of directors is disclosed in 
annexure-a

aUdIt COMMIttEE

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an 
Audit Committee shall consist of minimum three 
directors with independent directors forming a 
majority. As there is no independent director on the 
Board of the company, the Audit Committee will be 
constituted once the independent directors are in 
position.

paRtICULaRS OF EMpLOYEES aNd RELatEd 
dISCLOSURES

there is no employee in the Company falling under 
the category of employee required to be reported 
under the provisions of Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

dECLaRatION BY aN INdEpENdENt dIRECtOR(S) 
(SECtION 149(6) OF COMpaNIES aCt 2013

there is no independent director on the Board of the 
Company. 

NOMINatION aNd REMUNERatION COMMIttEE 
(SECtION 178 OF tHE COMpaNIES aCt 2013)

As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 
nomination and remuneration committee shall have 
three or more non executive directors, not less than 
half being independent.  As there is no independent 
director on the Board of the company, the Committee 
will be constituted once the independent directors 
are in position.

pERFORMaNCE aNd FINaNCIaL pOSItION OF 
EaCH OF SUBSIdIaRIES, aSSOCIatE aNd JOINt 
VENtURE COMpaNIES

the Company has no subsidiary, associate and joint 
venture Company.
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dIRECtORS’ RESpONSIBILItY StatEMENt UNdER 
tHE COMpaNIES aCt, 2013

in pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the directors hereby confirm that:

(a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts the 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there is no material departure from 
the same.

(b)  the directors have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the 
financial year  and of  the profit and loss of the 
company for that period;

(c)  the directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d)  the directors have prepared the annual accounts 
on a going concern basis; and

(e)  the directors have laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and 
are operating effectively and 

(f)  the directors have devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively.

dEtaILS aBOUt tHE pOLICY dEVELOpEd aNd 
IMpLEMENtEd BY tHE COMpaNY ON CORpORatE 
SOCIaL RESpONSIBILItY INItIatIVES taKEN 
dURINg tHE YEaR

during the year 2016-17 provisions of section 135 (1) 
of the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. hence, 
the corporate social responsibility initiatives will be 
undertaken in due course of time.

HUMaN RESOURCES aNd INdUStRIaL RELatIONS

your company is in the process of pursuing a 
very progressive and dynamic manpower policy 
for sourcing professionals and experts with rich 
experience, on deputation from Central/State 
Government and other PSus apart from RitES. this 
expertise may be supplemented by induction of 
qualified and knowledgeable personnel from open 
market and also through campus recruitment. 
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MEMORaNdUM OF UNdERStaNdINg

the company was incorporated on 16th August, 2013 
as a Joint venture Company of Ministry of Railways 
and RitES limited with equity participation in the 
ratio of indian Railways (49%) & RitES ltd (51%). the 
company meets parameters for ‘Excellent’ rating in its 
performance evaluation under the Mou signed with 
RitES ltd for the year under consideration (2016-17). 
however, communication from dPE in this regard is 
expected in due course.

SCHEdULEd CaStE, SCHEdULEd tRIBES aNd 
OtHER BaCKWaRd CLaSSES

At present, there is no manpower on the pay roll of 
the company. All the manpower including CEo  & 
CFo have been deputed by the holding company to 
conduct day to day operations. All its projects under 
progress are being executed by Ministry of Railways 
and RitES ltd. on behalf of the company.

aUdItORS

the Comptroller & Auditor General of india appointed 
M/s AB Bansal & Company, Chartered Accountants as 
Company’s Statutory Auditors, to audit the accounts 
of the company for the year 2016-17. the Board 
would like to place on record their sincere thanks for 
the valuable services rendered by Statutory Auditors.

SECREtaRIaL aUdItOR

the Board has appointed Mr. Akhil Rohatgi, Practicing 
Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit 
for the financial year 2016-17 the Secretarial Audit 
Report for the financial year ended March, 31, 2017 

has been placed at annexure – V. 

the observation of Secretarial Auditor and the 
Management Reply has been placed at annexure - VI

gENERaL

your directors state that no disclosure or reporting 
is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transactions on these items during the year 
under review:

1. details relating to deposits covered under chapter 
v of the Companies Act.

2. issue of equity shares with differential rights as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of the Company under any Scheme 
save and except ESoS referred to in this report.

4. neither the Chairman nor the directors of 
the Company receive any remuneration or 
commission from any of its subsidiaries. – not 
Applicable

5. no significant or material orders were passed 
by the Regulators or Courts or tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and Company’s 
operations in future.

 your directors further state that during the year 
under review, there were no cases filed pursuant 
to the Sexual harassment of women at workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

aCKNOWLEdgEMENtS  

We record our appreciation and thanks to Ministry of 
Railways and RitES ltd and other Ministries for their 
support to the Company, and also the employees of 
the respective parent companies for their efforts to 
take the company forward.

For and on behalf of Board of directors

Rajeev Mehrotra
Chairman

Place : Gurgaon
dated : 30.06.2017
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1. Company’s philosophy on Corporate  governance

 the philosophy of the Company in relation to 
Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in 
all its operations, make disclosures and reporting 
that conforms fully with laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines and to promote ethical conduct 
throughout the organization with the primary 
objective of enhancing shareholders value. 

2. Incorporation 

 Railway Energy Management Company limited 
was incorporated on 16th August, 2013 as a 
Joint venture Company of Ministry of Railways 
and RitES limited with equity participation in the 
ratio of indian Railways (49%) & RitES ltd (51%). 
during the year, the Company has increased its 
Authorised Share Capital from ` 50 crore to ` 150 
crore and Paid-up Share Capital from ` 50 crore to 
` 70 crore, respectively. 

3. Board of directors 

 As on 31st March, 2017, Company has five (5) 
directors namely, Shri Rajeev Mehrotra, Chairman, 
Shri Arbind Kumar, Shri Anil Ghai, Shri Sudhir Garg, 
and Ms Anju Ranjan, directors nominated by RitES 
limited and Ministry of Railways respectively.

3.1 Composition of the Board of directors

 the names and categories of directors on the 
Board, number of directorships and Committee 
Chairmanship/Membership held by them in other 
companies are as under:

S 
No

directors Category 
of 

directors
(part 
time) 

No. of 
other 

director-
ship*

No. of Committee 
Membership**

as 
Chairman

as 
Member

1. Shri Rajeev 
Mehrotra

Chairman 1 nil nil

2. Shri Arbind 
Kumar

director 1 nil nil

3. Shri h.K 
Bali (upto 
30.11.2016)

director 1 nil nil

4. Shri Anil 
Ghai (from 
01.12.2016)

director nil nil nil

S 
No

directors Category 
of 

directors
(part 
time) 

No. of 
other 

director-
ship*

No. of Committee 
Membership**

as 
Chairman

as 
Member

5. Ms niva 
Singh (upto 
16.02.2017)

director 1 nil nil

6. Ms Anju 
Ranjan 
(from 
17.02.2017)

director 2 nil nil

7. Shri Sudhir 
Garg 

director 1 nil 1

notes:  
* does not include directorship in Private Companies, Section 8 

Companies and Foreign Companies
** does not include Chairmanship / Membership in the Board of 

Committees other than the Audit Committee and Shareholders’/ 
Grievance Committees. 

*** none of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 
10 committees or chairman of more than 5 committees across 
all the companies in which he is a director. 

3.2 Brief Resume of directors who joined the Board 
as Whole - time / part time directors during the 
year 2016-17:

(i) Ms anju Ranjan: She is an iRAS (indian Railway 
Accounts Service) officer of 1989 batch with 
over 26 years of rich and varied experience. 
She has done M.Sc. in Botany from university of 
delhi. She has worked on various positions in 
northern Railway, Railway Board, East Central 
Railway, office of Comptroller and Auditor 
General of india and iRCon international 
limited. having handled such varied 
portfolios, she has acquired proficiency, in not 
only Finance and Accounts but also in areas of 
Budgeting, Establishment matters, Personnel 
Management and Contract Management. 
Presently she is serving as Executive director, 
Finance Expenditure-ii, Railway Board looking 
after Project Appraisal and Policy Formulation 
related to Capital investment.

(ii) Shri anil ghai : he is a Bachelor of Commerce 
from the university of delhi as well as a 
Chartered Accountant (iCAi). he has been a 
part of RitES since 1985 and has 31+ years of 
experience in handling financial management 
aspects of infrastructure projects, devising 

aNNEXURE – I
REpORt ON CORpORatE gOVERNaNCE
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accounting systems, contracts, tenders, 
transactions, advisory etc. . he has been on 
overseas assignments in uzbekistan, Kenya, 
Mozambique, nepal and iraq. Presently, he is 
serving as GM/F/ (Privatisation & Concession) 
in RitES.

3.3 Number of Board Meetings

 the Board of directors met 6 times during the year 
2016-17 to discuss and decide about the business 
activities of the Company.

S 
No.

directors Board Meetings during the Year

Held 
during 
tenure

attended attendance at 
the agM held 

on 5th Sept, 
2016

1. Shri Rajeev 
Mehrotra
Chairman

6 6 Present

2. Shri Arbind Kumar
director

6 5 Present

3. Shri h.K Bali 
(upto 30.11.2016)
director

4 4 Present

4. Shri Anil Ghai 
(from 01.12.2016)
director

2 2    _

5. Ms niva Singh
(upto 16.02.2017)
director

5 5 Present

6. Ms Anju Ranjan 
(from 17.02.2017)
director

1 1 -

7. Shri Sudhir Garg
director

6 6 Present

note: dates of the meeting and attendance of the directors in the 
meeting are placed as annexure- a to this report

4. Remuneration of directors

 directors, nominated on the Board of Railway 
Energy Management Company limited by the 
respective organization i.e Ministry of Railways 
and RitES limited, do not draw any remuneration 
from the Company.

 no sitting fee is paid to the part time directors for 
attending meetings of Board / committees.

5. Code of Conduct

 All directors of the company are employees 
of their parent organization. they have been 
following the Code of Conduct laid down by their 

respective organization.

6. Committees of the Board of directors

6.1 audit Committee:

 As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an 
Audit Committee shall consist of minimum three 
directors with independent directors forming a 
majority. As there is no independent director on 
the Board of the company, the Audit Committee 
will be constituted once the independent 
directors are in position.

6.2 Investment Committee

 investment Committee will be constituted as and 
when need arises

6.3 Nomination and Remuneration committee

 nomination and Remuneration committee will be 
constituted once the independent directors are in 
position.

6.4 Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability  

 during the year 2016-17 provisions of section 135 
(1) of the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

7. general Body  Meetings

 the details of the last three Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and Extra ordinary 
General Meeting are as under:

agM  Year date of 
holding 
Meeting 

time Venue Special 
Resolution

EGM 2016-
17

17.03.2017 16.00 
hRS

Rail Bhawan, 
Railway Board, 
nEW dElhi

nil

3nd  
AGM

2015-
16

05.09.2016 12:00 
hRS

SCoPE MinAR, 
laxmi nagar, 
delhi (Registered 
office of the 
Company) 

nil

2nd  
AGM

2014-
15

07.09.2015 15:00 
hRS

SCoPE MinAR, 
laxmi nagar, 
delhi (Registered 
office of the 
Company) 

nil

1st 
AGM

2013-
14

10.09.2014 12.00 
hRS

Rail Bhawan, 
Railway Board, 
nEW dElhi

nil

8. disclosures

•	 During	the	year,	there	has	been	no	materially	
significant related party transaction with the 
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directors, Management or their relatives that 
have a potential conflict with the interest of 
the company.

•	 Transactions	 with	 related	 parties	 as	 per	
requirements of ind AS 24 ‘Related Party 
disclosures’ are disclosed.

•	 The	company	has	followed	the	IND	AS	in	the	
preparation of financial Statements.

•	 No	 penalties	 imposed	 or	 strictures	 passed	
against the company by any statutory 
authorities on any matters related to any 
guidelines issued by the Government during 
the year.

•	 There	were	 no	 instances	 of	 non-compliance	
by the Company.

9. Means of Communication

 All important information pertaining to the 
Company has been mentioned in the Annual 
Report of the Company containing inter-alia 
Audited Accounts, Financial Statements, directors’ 
Report, Report on Corporate Governance which 
is being circulated to the members and others 
entitled thereto. All other communications shall 
be sent to the members through electronic mail 
and/or by surface Post.

10. Compliance

 Certificate obtained from a Practicing Company 
Secretary regarding compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
Guidelines is placed as Annexure - B to this report. 

annexure - a

attENdaNCE OF BOaRd OF dIRECtORS MEEtINg dURINg tHE YEaR 2016-17

S 
No.

Name of directors  15th   
BOd 

28th april, 
2016

16th BOd 
11th July, 

2016

17th BOd
28th July, 

2016

18th BOd
29th Nov, 

2016

19th BOd
3rd Jan, 
2017

20th  BOd
27th March, 

2017

total 6 
meetings

 

1. Shri Rajeev Mehrotra
Chairman

      All

2. Shri Arbind Kumar
director

 •     5 out of 6

3. Shri hari Kumar Bali
director  
(upto 30.11.2016)

    nA nA 4 out of 4

4. Shri Anil Ghai
director  
(from 01.12.2016)

nA nA nA nA   2 out of 2

5. Ms niva Singh
director  
(upto 16.02.2017)

    • nA 4 out of 5

6. Ms Anju Ranjan
director  
(from 17.02.2017)

nA nA nA nA nA  1 out of 1

7. Shri Sudhir Garg 
director

      All

Note:

 - Meeting attended
nA - not applicable (not in position)
•	 - Meeting not attended
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annexure - B

CERTIFICATE

to the Members of
RAILWAY ENERGY MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by RAilWAy EnERGy MAnAGEMEnt 
CoMPAny liMitEd for the period ended on 31st March, 2017 as stipulated in the dPE guidelines on Corporate 
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the ‘department of Public Enterprises’, Ministry of 
heavy industries and Public Enterprises, Government of india.

the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. our examination, 
carried out is in accordance with the Corporate Governance (Models of Best practices) issued by the institute 
of Company Secretaries of india, was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance.  it is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of certification and have been provided with such records, documents, certification, 
etc. as had been required by us. 

in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and information and according to the explanations given to 
us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
guidelines on corporate governance issued by the ‘department of Public Enterprises’ except that:

1. there was no independent director on the Board of the Company. 

2. in the absence of independent directors, ‘Audit Committee’, nomination and Remuneration Committee 
have not been duly constituted.

3. the Company is not having Risk Management Plan approved by the Board.

4. there was no company secretary appointed during the financial year. Company has appointed Chief 
Financial officer on 05/01/2017.  

We further state that the Company has already written to the Ministry of Railways for appointment of independent 
directors on the Board of the Company.

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to further viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For akhil Rohatgi & Co.

 

(akhil Rohatgi)
 Company Secretary in practice
place : New delhi  F.C.S: 1600
date : 30/06/2017  Cp No. 2317 
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the Company has been incorporated on 16th August, 
2013 as a joint venture company of indian Railways 
& RitES ltd with equity participation in the ratio of 
indian Railways (49%) & RitES ltd (51%) respectively. 
the main objectives of the Company are:-

a. Exploring the business opportunities for Green 
Energy, in the field of wind and solar for indian 
Railways.

b. Facilitating cost efficiencies in the electrical energy 
management for Railways through power trading 
with power exchanges and other modes.

c. implementation agency for the energy 
conservation projects owned by indian Railways.

d. identification and implementation of energy 
efficient technologies in both electric traction and 
non traction avenues of indian Railways.

e. Coordination with regulatory authorities on 
regulatory methods to obtain relief in electricity 
tariff processing.

1. OUtLOOK aNd OppORtUNItIES

 Railways identified power procurement & 
Renewable Energy projects as a key focused area 
to substantial save at least ` 3,000 crore in next 
few years. during 2015-16, iR consumed over 18 
billion energy units for its traction & non traction 
demand resulting in outgo of ` 13,000 crores 
towards electricity charges.

 the pace of energy consumption and recent trend 
of increase in electricity tariff has necessitated the 
need of procuring power through alternate modes. 
to reduce electricity bill, a series of initiatives 
are being planned by Railways by adopting 
multi-prolonged strategy including adoption of 
procuring power through bi-lateral arrangements, 
undertaking power trading activities, setting up 
of captive power plans, harnessing wind and 
solar energy, energy efficiency measure etc. 
Also in its endeavor to protect the environment, 
addressing the challenges of changes in global 
climate, promoting sustainable development 
and reducing dependence on fossil fuel, indian 
railways have taken the initiatives of harnessing 
wind and solar energy from renewable sources.

 Company is taking initiatives to  undertake and 
implement the projects of indian Railways related 
to harnessing green energy like windmill and 

aNNEXURE-II

MaNagEMENt dISCUSSION aNd aNaLYSIS

solar power plants, Power Procurement, efficient 
coordination in power generation through 
captive power plant, transmission lines and 
power evacuation planning, energy conservation 
initiatives, energy audits etc.

 opportunities in this regard are being undertaken 
as below:-

1.1 power planning for Railways

 With the dedicated efforts REMCl has initiated 
bidding process based on MoP model document 
for the first time in the country for iR for Medium 
term & Short term. REMCl facilitated 540 MW 
allocations from MoP & 750 MW from BRBCl 
plant, 577 MW from JitPl & 100 MW tAtA. the 
Migration process of Railway consumer mode to 
deemed distribution licensee has already been 
completed in the states of Maharashtra, Gujarat, 
MP, Rajasthan, Jharkhand & uP (iStS Points) and is 
in process in odisha, haryana, Punjab & Karnataka.

1.2. Harnessing Wind Energy

 Earlier, the power generated from REMCl’s 26 MW 
Wind Mill Power Plant was being utilized by WCR 
in consumer mode availing the banking facility at 
their 3 tSSs in Rajasthan. WCR has started taking 
power from M/s Jindal india thermal Power 
ltd (JitPl) at their tSSs in Rajasthan through 
Short term open Assess (StoA) as a ‘deemed 
distribution licensee’ (ddl) w.e.f. 10.01.2017 as a 
result of which the monthly energy bills of 26 MW 
wind power of REMCl for the month of January, 
February & March 2017 are yet to be paid by WCR. 

 Railway Board has also awarded the PMC work 
for setting-up of 10.5 MW wind mill plant in tamil 
nadu for SR on EPC mode to REMCl. tender has 
been floated on 07.06.2017. 

 tenders have been invited by REMCl for 
procurement of 35 MW wind power through 
tariff based bidding for its consumption by zonal 
railways at their non-traction load as a consumer 
in the states of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, 
Andhra Pradesh and tamil nadu. 

1.3. Harnessing Solar Energy

 Further, modalities also being worked out by 
REMCl and Railways to set-up Solar power plants 
for iR through tariff based competitive bidding 
without any investment either from Railways or 
REMCl.
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 REMCl has been mandated to 100 MW roof top, 
out of which, loA has been issued for 48 MW and 
bids have been invited for 52 MW roof top solar 
power for indian Railways.

 Project for around 400 MW Ground Mounted are 
being conceived generally on tariff based bidding 
route.

2 BUISNESS pERFORMaNCE

 Brief of various business activities are as under.

•	 REMCL	 has	 tied	 up	 about	 1980	MW	 power	
in various states of india through Bi-lateral 
arrangement, Allocation through MoP, open 
Competitive Bidding route and captive power 
plant of iR.

•	 The	Company	has	 installed	26	MW	Wind	Mill	
Plant and has generated 3.6 crores units so far. 

2.1 New development 

 Mumbai-ahmedabad High Speed Rail Corridor: 
techno-economic study & related survey of 
power sourcing arrangements pertaining to 
Mumbai – Ahmedabad high Speed Rail line work 
of national high Speed Rail Corporation ltd. is 
being considered by REMCl.

 Provision of installation of 33 nos. Passenger 
escalator in Mumbai Area of CR & WR. Bids are 
under evaluation.

2.2 Regulatory

 REMCl has established the status of indian 
Railways as ‘deemed distribution licensee’ under 
the Railway Act 1989, read in conjunction with 
Electricity Act 2003 in many states by contesting 
the case through CR in CERC. 

 As a result of the constant persuasion with 
Regulatory Authorities by REMCl, the indian 
Railways (iR) could migrate from ‘Consumer’ mode 
to the ‘deemed licensee’ mode in the states of 
Maharashtra, MP, Gujarat, Rajasthan, Jharkhand & 
uP (iStS Points)and started taking power directly 
from Generator in place of State diSCoMs.

 the order of CERC was challenged by WBSEdCl 
and GEtCo for stay in APtEl. REMCl facilitated  
through CR is contesting the case and consequently 
APtEl did not stay on the CERC order.

 Petitions in the state of odisha, haryana & Punjab 
have been filed by respective Stus which have 
been contested by REMCl on behalf of Zonal 
Railways. it has also facilitated northern Railway 
in contesting petition at haryana, Punjab and East 

Coast Railway in Contesting petition at orissa. 
Railway has received favorable order from haryana. 

3 OpERatIONaL pERFORMaNCE 

 REMCl was incorporated in mid 2013 and within 
such a short period of time, the company has 
steadily grown and progressed, as furnished 
below. 

i) Company has achieved an operating turnover 
of ` 55.67 crores during the year 2016-17 
which is mainly due to generation of clean 
energy from Wind mill plant at Jaisalmer, 
allocation of 620 MW from Ratnagiri power 
plant from Ministry of Power and direct power 
procurement on Short/Medium term from 
Generators..

ii) net worth of the company has increased 
from ` 53.12 crores to ` 91.48 crores due 
to increase in equity investment and profits 
earned during the year.

iii) Profit after tax for financial year 2016-17 
comes to ` 18.36 crores, as against ` 3.14 
crores of previous year.

iv) M/s Jindal thermal Power limited has been 
engaged for procurement of 585 MW power 
through competitive bidding for the states of 
Bihar, odisha, MP, Chhattisgarh, uP, Punjab, 
haryana, delhi & Rajasthan at a weighted 
average tariff of ` 3.65 per unit in March 2017.

4 StRENgtH

 REMCl is facilitating Railway in reducing its 
ordinary working expenses particularly by 
reducing the energy cost by sourcing electrical 
energy at reduced tariff with steady focused 
efforts, the quantum of power procurement is on 
increase and a comprehensive Pan-india power 
procurement plan has been developed by REMCl.

 Since the Rly. Electrification in the country is a 
regular process and with the passage of time 
more electrified tracks to be fed, thus, the 
economical power procurement will prove to 
be a stronger tool in limiting the inflated energy 
bill. in this regard, Scheduling of power, as near 
to actual load, is a prerequisite for economical 
purpose. REMCl has set up one Control Room in 
dec 2016 for forecasting & scheduling of power 
for indian Railways and for this PtC india ltd 
has been engaged by REMCl for managing the 
power portfolio management of iR & advising 
zonal railways for scheduling & forecasting.
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 in addition to this, further possibilities are been 
explored to harness ‘Renewal Energy’ i.e. wind & 
solar and tentative plans are being developed.

5. RISK aNd CONCERNS

i) At present 26 MW Wind Mill plant has been 
successfully commissioned by REMCl. in this 
regard, there are no known technological risks 
associated with the renewable energy wind 
power project as there is a sizeable installed 
capacity of windmills in the state of Rajasthan 
and elsewhere. A long term power purchase 
agreement (PPA) for 25 years has been signed 
with Railways for consumption of entire energy 
by Railways, generated from wind power plant 
having the captive status. this will ascertain a 
sure income from the sale of wind energy from 
Railways. however, as a result of change of West 
Central Railway (WCR) status from consumer 
to “deemed distribution licensee” mode in 
the state of Rajasthan w.e.f. 10.01.2017, the 
existing power purchase agreement (PPA) 
entered with West Central Railway may be 
modified. REMCl’s wind power bills for the 
month of January, February and March 2017 
are yet to be paid by WCR.

ii) Regarding solar energy the following 
limitations/ constraints are worth considering 
and need to be addressed to the best interest 
of the iR.

a) Banking of power is not applicable for    
distribution licensee.

b) Accurate Scheduling and Forecasting 
Required.

c) the lack of clarity on implementation of 
MW class or small project.

d) Recently Solar power tariff is higher in 
comparative to conventional power 
procured through open bidding.

 Company does not foresee business risk in 
providing consultancy for procurement of power 
for indian Railways through bilateral agreement 
arrangement with power producers at economical 
terms and tariff. Further, “the power trading” 
will also a permissible activity which facilitates 
purchase of power on further competitive tariff 
rates. 

6 OtHER CONCERNS

•	 PPAs	 are	 being	 signed	 for	 25	 years,	 often	
below the cost of “brown” power from the 

grid. organizations that sign a PPA can reduce 
their electricity expenses and gain stability 
in financial planning as a result. A long-term 
renewable energy contract represents a 
real opportunity to hedge against increases 
in traditional energy costs but even with 
the promising competitive price trends, 
predictable prices alone won’t guarantee 
that a renewable energy PPA will produce the 
valuable financial benefits organizations are 
seeking. 

•	 Government	 policies	 are	 changing	 day	 by	
day, this may influence the implementation 
of Renewable as well as power procurement 
projects and we shall equip ourselves with the 
latest development in this regard. there is no 
single comprehensive policy statement for 
Renewable Energy in the country. the policy 
framework at the state level is no better. in 
fact, in many states policies have only created 
uncertainty for investments in Renewable 
Energy projects.

•	 Since	 REMCL	 is	 a	 JV	 of	 Indian	 Railways	 and	
RitES ltd., indian Railways is our single client 
as of now and we are mandated to take up 
projects pertaining with Renewable Energy, 
Power procurement, transmission line etc. 
in order to facilitate them & it is evident to 
achieve consistent growth of our company we 
may seek other opportunities in Power sector. 

•	 technology change effecting rates: 
technology up gradation no doubt create 
a positive impact on the development of 
renewable energy projects but simultaneously 
it also affects the price of generation. 

7 INtERNaL CONtROL SYStEM :-

 An effective control and audit systems are already 
in place in REMCl on the lines of the parent 
company i.e. RitES ltd.

8 HUMaN RESOURCES aNd INdUStRIaL       
RELatIONS

 REMCl is in a process of pursuing a very progressive 
and dynamic manpower policy for sourcing 
professionals and experts with rich experience, 
on deputation from Central/State Government 
and other PSus apart from RitES. this expertise 
may be supplemented by induction of qualified 
and knowledgeable personnel from open market 
and also through campus recruitment.
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aNNEXURE - III

FORM NO. aOC -2
(pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (accounts) 

Rules, 2014.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction 
under third proviso thereto.

1. details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis.

S. No. particulars details

a) name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship nil

b) nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction nil

c) duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction nil

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, 
if any

nil

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ nil

f) date of approval by the Board nil

g) Amount paid as advances, if any nil

h) date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required 
under first proviso to section 188

nil

2. details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis.

S. No. particulars details
a) name (s) of the related party & 

nature of relationship
RitES limited – holding Company (51%)
Equity Shareholders

b) nature of contracts/
arrangements/transaction

RitES limited  - (` in lakh)

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

- Fee for services obtained 480.35

- Reimbursable 48.13

- Equity investment 1020.00

1548.48

Ministry of Railways - (` in lakhs)

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

- income from Consultancy 3872.65

-  Sale of Power Generation 1694.27

-  Equity investment 980.00

tOtaL 6546.92
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Salary & other benefits viz. PF, pension etc of CEo were paid by RitES 
ltd. (holding company) after deduction of tdS as per provisions of 
income tax Act, 1961. Gross salary is charged based on advice by the 
holding company. the details of which are as under: 

CEO –  Shri Sudhir Kumar Saxena 

` in lakhs

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

-Basic Pay including dA 22.41

-other Allowances & retiral benefits 12.79

tOtaL 35.20

CFO – during the year 2016-17, Shri Sunil Kumar Singh has been 
designated as Chief Finance officer of the company w.e.f. 05.01.2017. 

Salary & other benefits viz. PF, pension etc of CFo was paid by RitES 
ltd. (holding company) after deduction of tdS as per provisions of 
income tax Act, 1961. Gross salary is charged based on advice by the 
holding company. the details of which are as under:

Shri Sunil Kumar Singh (From 5th January 2017) 

` in lakhs

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

-Basic Pay including dA 1.69

-other Allowances & retiral benefits 1.22

tOtaL 2.91

c) duration of the  contracts/
arrangements/transaction

RitES ltd. – Services of experts from holding company may be 
obtained as and when required.   

Ministry of Railways 

i. Services for Economic Power Procurement at professional 
charges of 07 paisa per unit
a) north Central Railway (Adani Project ) – 01.12.2015 to 

31.03.2019
b) West Central Railway (RGPPl) – 22.01.2016 to 31.03.2022
c) Central Railway (RGPPl) – 26.11.2015 to 31.03.2022
d) Western Railway (RGPPl) – 09.01.2016 to 31.03.2022
e) South Eastern Railway (RGPPl) -  17.01.2016 to 31.03.2022
f) Central Railway (tAtA) – 10.02.2016 to July 2017
g) West Central Railway, MP (JitPl) – 12.07.2016 to 31.03.2020
h) West Central Railway, Rajasthan (JitPl) – 10.01.2014 to 

31.03.2020
ii. Sale of Renewal Power Generation from 26 MW Wind Mill plant 

situated at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan.

 West Central Railway – 25 years PPA w.e.f. 16.10.2015

 B
O

a
R

d
 a

N
d

 M
a

N
a

g
E

M
E

N
t R

E
p

O
R

tS



Railway EnERgy ManagEMEnt Co. ltd.

24

d) Salient terms of the contracts 
or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any

RitES ltd. – Experts of holding Company will render technical 
services to company. holding Company will charge for their 
experts on the same basis as being charged to other clients. Fees 
will depend upon the quantum of experts services utilized by the 
company. 

transaction value for fees for services obtained – ` 480.35 lakhs 
(excluding Service tax). 

Ministry of Railways – 

Services for Economic Power Procurement at professional charges 
of 07 paisa per unit

Professional charges of 07 paisa per Kwh (unit) of energy purchased 
from Zonal Railways through Bi-lateral arrangements, Allocation 
through MoP and open Competitive Bidding route against 
services for effective commencement and operationalization of 
economic power procurement by holding company experts.

total value of transaction – ` 3872.65 lakhs

Sale of Renewal Power Generation from 26 MW Wind Mill plant 
situated at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan 

Energy produced from captive wind mill plant is being billed on 
the basis of levelised tariff derived on the basis of PPA entered 
into with respective zonal railway.

total value of transaction value – ` 1694.27 lakhs
e) date of approval by the Board Fees for Services obtained – 17th Bod – 26th August, 2016,  18th 

Bod – 29th november, 2016 and 21st Bod – 30th June, 2017
f) Amount paid as advances, if 

any
nil

Rajeev Mehrotra
 Chairman

place : gurgaon
dated : 30.06.2017
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AnnEXuRE - iv

FORM NO. Mgt 9
EXtRaCt OF aNNUaL REtURN

as on financial year ended on 31st March, 2017
pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REgIStRatION & OtHER dEtaILS:

1. Cin u93000dl2013Goi256661
2. Registration date 16th August, 2013
3. name of the Company Railway Energy Management Company limited
4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares 
5. Address of the Registered office  & contact 

details
SCoPE MinAR, lAXMi nAGAR, dElhi-110092, indiA
011-22024610

6. Whether listed company yes/no no

7.
name, Address & contact details of  the 
Registrar & transfer Agent, 

 nA

II. pRINCIpaL BUSINESS aCtIVItIES OF tHE COMpaNY 

 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

S. 
No.

Name and description of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the 
product/service

%  to total turnover of 
the company

1 Consultancy for Economic Power Procurement for 
Railways

-- 69.57 

2 Power Generation -- 30.43

III. paRtICULaRS OF HOLdINg, SUBSIdIaRY aNd aSSOCIatE COMpaNIES-

S 
No.

Name and address of 
the company

CIN/gLN Holding 
Subsidiary/ 
associate

% of 
shares 
held

applicable Section 

1 RitES ltd, Scope 
Minar,  laxmi nagar

u74899dl1974Goi007227 holding  51% 2(87) of the 
Companies Act,2013

2 Ministry of Railways, 
Rail Bhawan

-- -- 49%

IV. SHaRE HOLdINg pattERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year

demat physical total % of total 
Shares

demat physical total % of total 
Shares

a. promoters                  

(1) Indian

a) individual/ huF

b) Central Govt 24500000 49% 34300000 49%

c) State Govt(s)
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year

demat physical total % of total 
Shares

demat physical total % of total 
Shares

d) Bodies Corp. 25500000 51% 35700000 51%

e) Banks / Fi

f) Any other

Sub-total (A)(1):- 50000000 100% 70000000 100%

A. Promoters

(2) Foreign

a) nRis-individual

b) other individuals 

c) Bodies Corp.

c) Banks / Fi

f) Any other

Sub-total (A)(2):-

B. Public Shareholding

1. institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / Fi

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) venture Capital 
Funds

f) insurance 
Companies

g) Fiis

 h) Foreign venture 
Capital Funds

i) others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. non-institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) indian

ii) overseas

b) individuals

i) individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

ii) individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh

c) others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2):-

total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GdRs 
& AdRs

Grand total (A+B+C) 50000000 70000000
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ii) Shareholding of promoters

S 
No
 

Shareholder’s 
Name
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

Shareholding at the end of the year % change 
in share-
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 RitES ltd 25499985 51% 35699979 51%  

2 Ministry of 
Railways

24499990 49% 34299986 49%  

3 Shri  Arbind Kumar 5 7  

4 Shri h.K.Bali
(upto 30.11.2016)

5 Ceased to be 
director (shares 

has been 
transferred to 
Shri Anil Ghai)

5 Shri Anil Ghai
(director w.e.f. 
1.12.2016)

7

6 Shri Bimal Prasad 3 nil (Shares 
has been 

transferred 
to Shri J.C.S 

Bora)t

7 Shri J.C.S. Bora
(Shares transferred 
on 09.03.2017)

2 7

8 Shri Anand dev 5 7

9 Ms niva Singh
(upto 16.02.2017)

5 Ceased to be 
director (shares 

has been 
transferred 
to Ms Anju 

Ranjan)

 

10 Ms Anju Ranjan
(director w.e.f 
17.02.2017

7

  total 50000000 70000000  

iii) Change in promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl.
No.

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of 
shares

% of total
shares of the

company

1. At the beginning of the year 50000000 100

2. date wise increase / decrease in Promoters Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc.):

31st  March, 
2017

3. At the end of the year 70000000 100
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iv)  Shareholding pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than directors, promoters and Holders of gdRs and 
adRs): Nil

Sl.
No.

For Each of the top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year Nil

date wise increase / decrease in Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year Nil

v) Shareholding of directors and Key Managerial personnel:

Sl.
No.

Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

date Increase/
(decrease) in 
shareholding

 Reason Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total
shares of the

company

No. of 
shares

% of total
shares of the

company
1. Shri Arbind Kumar 

director
5 31st March, 

2017
2 issue of equity 

shares
7

2. Shri h.K.Bali
director
(upto 30.11.2016)

5 - (5) Ceased to be 
director (shares has 
been transferred to 

Shri Anil Ghai)

nil

3. Shri Anil Ghai
director  
(w.e.f. 01.12.2016)

0 31st March, 
2017

7 issue of equity 
shares

7

4. Ms. niva Singh
director
(upto 16.02.2017)

5 - (5) Ceased to be 
director (shares has 
been transferred to 

Ms. Anju Ranjan

nil

5. Ms Anju Ranjan
director
(from 17.02.2017)

0 31st March, 
2017

7 issue of equity 
shares

7

VI.  INdEBtEdNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.  
           (` in lakh)
  Secured Loans 

excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans
deposits total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year        
i) Principal Amount  12058.55     -- -- 12058.55
ii)  interest due but not paid  103.61 -- -- 103.61
iii)  interest accrued but not due  -- -- --  
total (i+ii+iii) 12162.16 12162.16
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year        
* Addition  -- --  -- --
* Reduction 3731.14 -- -- 3731.14
Net Change 3731.14 3731.14
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year      
i) Principal Amount 8342.85 -- -- 8342.85
ii) interest due but not paid 88.17 -- -- 88.17
iii) interest accrued but not due  -- -- -- --
total (i+ii+iii) 8431.02   8431.02
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VII. REMUNERatION OF dIRECtORS aNd KEY MaNagERIaL pERSONNEL-

a.  Remuneration to Managing director, Whole-time directors and/or Manager: Na

Sl.
No.

particulars of Remuneration Name of Md/Wtd/ Manager total amount

1 Gross salary          
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the income-tax Act, 1961
       

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) income-tax Act, 
1961

       

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
income- tax Act, 1961

         

2 Stock option          
3 Sweat Equity          
4 Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify

         

5 others, please specify          
  total (A)          
  Ceiling as per the Act          

B.  Remuneration to other directors

Sl.
No.

particulars of Remuneration Name of directors total amount

    ----- ---- ---- ---  

1 independent directors  nA        
Fee for attending board committee 
meetings

         

Commission          
others, please specify          
total (1)          

2 other non-Executive directors  nA        
Fee for attending board committee 
meetings          
Commission          
others, please specify          

  total (2)          
  total (B)=(1+2)          

  total Managerial Remuneration          

  overall Ceiling as per the Act          

 B
O

a
R

d
 a

N
d

 M
a

N
a

g
E

M
E

N
t R

E
p

O
R

tS



Railway EnERgy ManagEMEnt Co. ltd.

30

C  Remuneration to Key Managerial personnel other than Md/MaNagER/Wtd

SN
 

particulars of Remuneration
 

Key Managerial personnel

CEO CS CFO (From 
05.01.2017 to 
31.03.2017)

total (`)

1 Gross salary 3519346  - 291536 3810882

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the income-tax Act, 
1961

     

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
income-tax Act, 1961

       

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) income-tax Act, 1961

       

2 Stock option        
3 Sweat Equity        
4 Commission        
  - as % of profit        
  others specify        
5 others, please specify        
  total 3519346  - 291536 3810882

VII. pENaLtIES / pUNISHMENt/ COMpOUNdINg OF OFFENCES:

type Section of the 
Companies act

Brief 
description

details of penalty 
/ punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

authority 
[Rd / NCLt/ 

COURt]

appeal made, 
if any (give 

details)

a. COMpaNY
Penalty  nA        
Punishment          
Compounding          

B. dIRECtORS
Penalty  nA        
Punishment          
Compounding          

C. OtHER OFFICERS IN dEFaULt
Penalty  nA        
Punishment          
Compounding          

Rajeev Mehrotra
Chairman

Place : Gurgaon      
dated : 30.06.2017
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aNNEXURE - V

Form No. MR-3
SECREtaRIaL aUdIt REpORt

FOR tHE FINaNCIaL YEaR ENdEd 31st March 2017
[pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (appointment and 

Remuneration personnel) Rules, 2014]

to,
the Members,
Railway Energy Management Company limited.
Scope Minar, laxmi nagar
delhi-110092

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Railway Energy Management Company limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
Railway Energy Management Company limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to 
the provisions of:

(i) the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under are not 
applicable.

(iii) the Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1999 and the rules made thereunder are not applicable as the 
shares of Company are not listed with any of the Stock Exchanges

(iv) the depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder are not applicable as the 
shares of Company are not registered with any of the depository mentioned under the said Act.

(v) the Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of india Act, 1992 
(‘SEBi Act’) are not applicable as the shares of Company are not listed with any of the Stock Exchanges.

(vi) other applicable laws, rules and Guidelines as mentioned here-in-below: 

a. dPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the ‘department 
of Public Enterprises’, Ministry of heavy industries and Public Enterprises, Government of india.

b. Electricity Act 2003

c. Right to information Act 2005

d. labour laws as applicable

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by 
the institute of Company Secretaries of india with effect 1st July 2015:
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 during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. during the period under scrutiny there was no independent director. 

2. due to non appointment of independent directors, Audit Committee was not constituted.  

3. ‘nomination and Remuneration Committee’ was not in position in the absence of independent directors.   

4. there was no company secretary appointed during the financial year. Company has appointed Chief 
Financial officer on 05/01/2017.  

5. the Company is not having Risk Management Plan approved by the Board.

We further report that there was no Executive director on the Board of the Company. the changes in the Board 
of directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act.  Further, there was no independent director on the Board of the Company. We further report that the 
Company has already written to the Ministry of Railways for appointment of independent directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision has been carried through in the meetings. it was informed by the management that there was 
no dissenting member on any of the agenda item put up before the Board for discussion.

We further Report that during the period under scrutiny, Company has increased its paid up Share Capital on 
31/03/2017 from ` 50,00,00,000/-  (Rupees fifty Crores) to ` 70,00,00,000/- (Seventy Crores) by allotment of 
2,00,00,000/- (two Crores) equity shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in proportion to their 
current holding.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

For akhil Rohatgi & Co.

akhil Rohatgi
practicing Company Secretary

place: New delhi  FCS No.: 1600
date: 30/06/2017  Cp No: 2317
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to,
the Members,
Railway Energy Management Company limited 
Scope Minar, laxmi nagar
delhi-110092

our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.  the verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records.  We believe that the processes and practices, 
we follow provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of the events etc.

5. the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable law, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management.  our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. the Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For akhil Rohatgi & Company

akhil Rohatgi
practicing Company Secretary

place: New delhi  FCS No.: 1600
date: 30/06/2017 Cp No.: 2317

aNNEXURE - VI

MaNagEMENt REpLIES IN RESpECt OF OBSERVatION BY SECREtaRIaL aUdItOR

  Secretarial auditors’ Observation Management Reply 
1. during the period under scrutiny there was no 

independent director. 

2. due to non appointment of independent 
directors, Audit Committee was not constituted.  

3. ‘nomination and Remuneration Committee’ was 
not in position in the absence of independent 
directors.   

letters dt 26th February, 2016 and 13th July, 2016 have 
been written to Ministry of Railways for appointment of 
independent directors on the Board of the company. 
the proposal for appointment of independent director 
is under consideration of Ministry of Railways.

the committees will be constituted, once the 
independent directors are in position. 

4. Company Secretary has not been appointed in 
the Company. 

As Company has started its operation from March, 
2015. Company Secretary will be appointed in due 
course of time. Presently, RitES officials are giving 
required professional support.

5. the Company is not having Risk Management 
Plan approved by the Board

the Company has started its operational activities 
from March, 2015. the Risk Management Plan will be 
documented in due course of time.

place :  gurgaon Rajeev Mehrotra anil ghai
date : 30.06.2017 Chairman director 
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REpORt ON tHE StaNdaLONE Ind aS FINaNCIaL 
StatEMENtS

We have audited the accompanying standalone 
ind AS financial statements of Railway Energy 
Management Company Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2017, the Statement of Profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement, 
statement of changes in equity for the year ended, and 
a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to 
as (‘standalone ind AS financial statements‘).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind 
aS Financial Statements

the Company’s Board of directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone ind AS financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity  of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in india, including the indian Accounting 
Standards (ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

this responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

auditors’ Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
standalone ind AS financial statements based on our 
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of 
the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit 

report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the standalone ind AS financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
standalone ind AS financial statements. the procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the standalone ind AS financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation of the standalone ind 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the Company’s directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the standalone ind AS 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the standalone ind AS financial 
statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone ind AS financial statements give 
the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
india including the ind AS, of the  financial position of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2017, and its financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, 
its cash flows and the changes in the equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
order, 2016 (“the order”), issued by the Central 

INdEpENdENt aUdItORS’ REpORt
tO tHE MEMBERS OF RaILWaY ENERgY MaNagEMENt COMpaNY LIMItEd
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Government of india in terms of sub-section 
(11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
annexure ‘1’ a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent 
applicable.

2. in terms of section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, we give in the annexure ‘2’ a statement on 
the directions issued under the aforesaid section 
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of india.

3. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we 
report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  in our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

(c)  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the 
statement of the changes in equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of accounts.

(d)  in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
ind AS financial statements comply with 
the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant 
rules issued thereunder.

(e)  on the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2017, taken on record by the Board of 
directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “annexure 3”.

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company does not have pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position.

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses; and

iii.  no amounts were required to be 
transferred to the investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. the company has provided requisite 
disclosure in the standalone ind AS 
financial statement as to holding as well 
as dealing in specified Bank notes during 
the period from 8th november, 2016 to 
30th december, 2016 and these are in 
accordance in with books of accounts 
maintained by the company. Refer to note 
2.37 to the standalone ind AS financial 
statements.

For a. B. BaNSaL & COMpaNY
ChARtEREd ACCountAntS

Firm Registration. no. 010538n             

(Sunny Kohli)
place : New delhi partner       
dated : 30-06-2017 M. No. 513283
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the Annexure ‘1’ Referred to in paragraph 1 under the 
heading ‘Report on other legal & Regulatory Requirement’ 
of our report of even date to the standalone ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 
2017:

1. a)  the Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of its fixed assets. 

 b) the fixed assets of the Company have been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year and no discrepancies have been noticed on 
such verification. in our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and nature of its assets. 

 c) the title deeds of sub - lease hold land which is 
only immovable property is in the name of the 
Company.

2. the nature of business of the Company does not 
require it to have any inventory. hence, the requirement 
of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

3. the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register 
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

4. the Company has not granted any loans, guarantee 
or provide security to directors or any other person in 
whom director is interested covered under provisions 
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

5. the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of india and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of deposit) Rules, 2015 with 
regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not 
applicable. 

6. the Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company. 

7. a) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues with appropriate 
authorities including income tax, Service tax, 
value Added tax, and other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities applicable to the Company.

 b) According to information and explanations given 
to us, there are no disputed dues of income tax, 
Service tax, value added tax and other statutory 
dues which have not been deposited. 

8. According to the records of the company examined by 
us and as per the information and explanations given 

to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of 
dues of term loan availed from indian bank.

9. According to the records of the company examined by 
us and as per the information and explanations given 
to us, term loans taken from indian bank for setting 
up Wind Mill plant at Jaisalmer has been applied for 
the purpose for which it has been sanctioned by bank. 
Apart from this, the company has not raised any money 
by way of public issue/follow on offer (including debt 
document).

10. According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the 
company by its officers/employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given 
to us, the company has not paid any managerial 
remuneration to its directors. 

12. in our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. 
therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the order 
are not applicable to the Company. 

13. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 188 and 177 of Companies Act, 2013 
and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements under note 2.26 of notes to Accounts as 
required by the applicable accounting standards and 
Companies Act, 2013;

14. during the year, on 31st March 2017, the Company 
allotted further equity shares to its existing shareholders 
in the same proportion. the issue proceeds were kept 
in fixed deposit with scheduled bank on 31st March 
2017 for desired utilisation in the coming future.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
the company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 
order are not applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon. 

16. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and in our opinion the company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of 
india Act, 1934.

For a. B. BaNSaL & COMpaNY
ChARtEREd ACCountAntS

Firm Registration. no. 010538n             

(Sunny Kohli)
place : New delhi partner       
dated : 30-06-2017 M. No. 513283

aNNEXURE - 1 tO tHE INdEpENdENt aUdItORS REpORt 
Re.: RaILWaY ENERgY MaNagEMENt COMpaNY LIMItEd
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aNNEXURE - 2  tO tHE INdEpENdENt aUdItORS  REpORt 
Re.: RaILWaY ENERgY MaNagEMENt COMpaNY LIMItEd

Based on the verification of Records of the Company and 
information and explanations given to us, we report that:

a. the Company has sub-lease deed for Sub lease-land 
situated at village Kodiyasar, tehsil Fatehgarh, distt. 
Jaisalmer.

b. there are no cases of waiver/write off of debts, loans/ 
interest etc. during the year. 

c. the Company has no inventory in hand and also with 
third parties.

For a. B. BaNSaL & COMpaNY
ChARtEREd ACCountAntS

Firm Registration. no. 010538n
             

(Sunny Kohli)
place : New delhi partner       
dated : 30-06-2017 M. No. 513283

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
act, 2013 (“the act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Railway Energy Management 
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
ind AS financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

the Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance note on Audit of internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
institute of Chartered Accountants of india. these 
responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

auditors’ Responsibility 

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance note on 
Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by iCAi and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india. 
those Standards and the Guidance note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting. 

aNNEXURE - 3 tO tHE INdEpENdENt aUdItORS REpORt 
Re.: RaILWaY ENERgY MaNagEMENt COMpaNY LIMItEd
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

According to the information and explanation given 
to us, in our opinion, the  Company has, in all material 
aspects, an adequate internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2017, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of 
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of 
india.

For a. B. BaNSaL & COMpaNY
ChARtEREd ACCountAntS

Firm Registration. no. 010538n             

(SUNNY KOHLI)
place : New delhi partner       
dated : 30-06-2017 M. No. 513283
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 (` in lakhs) 
paRtICULaRS NOtE NO.  aS at 

31.03.2017 
 aS at 

31.03.2016 
 aS at 

01.04.2015 
aSSEtS
NON CURRENt aSSEtS

PRoPERty, PlAnt And EquiPMEnt 2.03 14,433.29 15,046.47 -   
CAPitAl WoRK in PRoGRESS 2.04 -   -   1,451.82 
intAnGiBlE ASSEtS 2.05 1.16 -   -   
FinAnCiAl ASSEtS

othER FinAnCiAl ASSEtS 2.06 435.92 1.02 -   
dEFERREd tAX ASSEtS (nEt) 2.07 -   -   8.34 
othER non CuRREnt ASSEtS 2.08 884.97 96.73 3.89 

15,755.34 15,144.22 1,464.05 
CURRENt aSSEtS

FinAnCiAl ASSEtS
tRAdE RECEivABlES 2.09 703.10 653.78 33.83 
CASh And CASh EquivAlEntS 2.10.1 1,296.43 2,006.87 404.15 
othER BAnK BAlAnCES 2.10.2 2,056.39 773.10 1,154.10 
othER FinAnCiAl ASSEtS 2.11 38.92 15.42 28.41 

othER CuRREnt ASSEtS 2.12 8.74 14.49 10.45 
4,103.58 3,463.66 1,630.94 

tOtaL aSSEtS 19,858.92 18,607.88 3,094.99 

EQUItY aNd LIaBILItIES
EQUItY

Equity ShARE CAPitAl 2.13 7,000.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 
othER Equity 2.14 2,148.44 312.20 (1.31)

9,148.44 5,312.20 2,998.69 
LIaBILItIES
NON CURRENt LIaBILItIES

FinAnCiAl liABilitiES
BoRRoWinG 2.15 7,576.39 11,053.67 -   

dEFERREd tAX liABitiES(nEt) 2.16 1,178.93 147.93 -   
8,755.32 11,201.60 -   

CURRENt LIaBILItIES
FinAnCiAl liABilitiES

tRAdE PAyABlES 2.17 -   134.13 87.41 
othER FinAnCiAl liABilitiES 2.18 1,836.69 1,852.65 8.74 

othER CuRREnt liABilitiES 2.19 118.47 11.02 0.15 
CuRREnt tAX liABilitiES(nEt) -   96.28 -   

1,955.16 2,094.08 96.30 
tOtaL EQUItY aNd LIaBILItIES 19,858.92 18,607.88 3,094.99 
SiGniFiCAnt ACCountinG PoliCiES And notES to ACCountS FoRM 
An intEGRAl PARt oF StAndAlonE FinAnCiAl StAtEMEntS

1&2

BaLaNCE SHEEt aS at 31St MaRCH, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil GhAi
director
din:07669940

RAJEEv MEhRotRA
Chairman

din : 01583143

Sunil KuMAR SinGh
Chief Finance officer

M.no. :ACA 500175

As per our report of even date attached

For A.B. BAnSAl & CoMPAny 
Chartered Accountants

FRn :010538n

(Sunny Kohli)
Partner

M.no : 513283Place : new delhi
dated : 30th June, 2017

F
IN

a
N

C
Ia

L Sta
t

E
M

E
N

t
S



Railway EnERgy ManagEMEnt Co. ltd.

40

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil GhAi
director
din:07669940

RAJEEv MEhRotRA
Chairman

din : 01583143

Sunil KuMAR SinGh
Chief Finance officer

M.no. :ACA 500175

 (` in lakhs) 
paRtICULaRS NOtE NO.  YEaR ENdEd  

 31.03.2017 
 YEaR ENdEd  

 31.03.2016 
REVENUE

REvEnuE FRoM oPERAtionS 2.20 5,566.92 1,710.31 
othER inCoME 2.21 282.10 93.89 

tOtaL REVENUE 5,849.02 1,804.20 
EXpENdItURE

FEE FoR SERviCE oBtAinEd 506.71 269.04 
SAlARy REiMBuRSEMEnt 38.11 34.69 
FinAnCE CoStS 1,132.69 471.38 
tRAnSMiSSion & WhEElinG ChARGES  2.35 373.33 216.59 
dEPRECiAtion & AMoRtiSAtion EXPEnSES 2.03 & 2.05 613.54 281.43 
othER EXPEnSES 2.22 317.41 61.29 

tOtaL EXpENdItURE   2,981.79 1,334.42 
pROFIt BEFORE taX 2,867.23 469.78 
tAX EXPEnSES

- CuRREnt tAX 2.24 -   -   
- dEFERREd tAX (nEt) 1,030.99 156.27 

pROFIt aFtER taX 1,836.24 313.51 

OtHER COMpREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

tOtaL OtHER COMpREHENSIVE INCOME (NEt OF taX) -   -   

tOtaL COMpREHENSIVE INCOME FOR tHE YEaR 1,836.24 313.51 

EaRNINg pER SHaRE (Equity ShARE oF ` 10/- EACh) - 
BaSIC & dILUtEd 

2.27 ` 3.67 1.04

WEiGhtEd AvERAGE nuMBER oF Equity ShARES uSEd 
in CoMPutinG EARninG PER ShARE

5,00,54,795 3,00,54,645 

StatEMENt OF pROFIt aNd LOSS  FOR tHE YEaR ENdEd 31St MaRCH, 2017

As per our report of even date attached

For A.B. BAnSAl & CoMPAny 
Chartered Accountants

FRn :010538n

(Sunny Kohli)
Partner

M.no : 513283Place : new delhi
dated : 30th June, 2017
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a. EQUItY SHaRE CapItaL - (REFER NOtE NO 2.13)
 (` in lakhs) 

BaLaNCE aS at 01.04.2016 CHaNgES IN EQUItY SHaRE CapItaL  
dURINg tHE pERIOd

BaLaNCE aS 
at 31.03.2017

5,000.00 2000.00 7000.00

                  (` in lakhs) 
BaLaNCE aS at 01.04.2015 CHaNgES IN EQUItY SHaRE CapItaL  

dURINg tHE pERIOd
BaLaNCE aS 

at 31.03.2016
3,000.00 2000.00 5000.00

B. OtHER EQUItY - (REFER NOtE NO 2.14)
 (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS RESERVE aNd SURpLUS OtHER 
COMpREHENSIVE 

INCOME

tOtaL
gENERaL 
RESERVE*

REtaINEd 
EaRNINgS

BaLaNCE aS at 01.04.2016 312.20 -   312.20 

PRoFit FoR thE yEAR -   1,836.24 -   1,836.24 
tRAnSFER to GEnERAl RESERvE FRoM 
REtAinEd EARninGS

1,836.24 (1,836.24) -   -   

BaLaNCE at 31.03.2017 2,148.44 -   -   2,148.44 

 (` in lakhs) 
paRtICULaRS RESERVE aNd SURpLUS OtHER 

COMpREHENSIVE 
INCOME

tOtaL
gENERaL 
RESERVE

REtaINEd 
EaRNINgS

BaLaNCE aS at 01.04.2015             (1.31)                 -   (1.31)
PRoFit FoR thE yEAR                 -             313.51 -   313.51 
tRAnSFER to GEnERAl RESERvE FRoM 
REtAinEd EARninGS

          313.51          (313.51) -   -   

BaLaNCE at 31.03.2016           312.20                 -   -   312.20 

* GEnERAl RESERvES CAn BE utiliSEd FoR GEnERAl PuRPoSE oF BuSinESS inCludinG diStRiBution oF 
dividEnd to ShAREholdERS.

StatEMENt OF CHaNgES IN EQUItY FOR tHE YEaR ENdEd 31St MaRCH, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil GhAi
director
din:07669940

RAJEEv MEhRotRA
Chairman

din : 01583143

Sunil KuMAR SinGh
Chief Finance officer

M.no. :ACA 500175

As per our report of even date attached

For A.B. BAnSAl & CoMPAny 
Chartered Accountants

FRn :010538n

(Sunny Kohli)
Partner

M.no : 513283Place : new delhi
dated : 30th June, 2017
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StatEMENt OF CaSH FLOWS FOR tHE YEaR ENdEd 31St MaRCH, 2017

 (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS  YEaR ENdEd  
 31.03.2017 

 YEaR ENdEd  
 31.03.2016 

CaSH FLOW FROM OpERatINg aCtIVItIES

nEt PRoFit BEFoRE tAX 2,867.23 469.78 

adJUStMENtS FOR:

- dEPRECiAtion And AMoRtiZAtion 613.54 281.43 

- intERESt FRoM Fds/othERS (263.09) (50.51)

- FinAnCE CoSt 1,132.69 471.38 

OpERatINg pROFIt BEFORE CHaNgES IN aSSEtS aNd LIaBILItIES 4,350.37 1,172.08 

ChAnGE in ASSEtS And liABilitiES:

adJUStMENtS FOR (INCREaSE)/dECREaSE IN OpERatINg aSSEtS:

- tRAdE RECEivABlES (49.32) (619.95)

- othER FinAnCiAl ASSEtS And othER  CuRREnt ASSEtS 5.89 (0.15)

adJUStMENtS FOR INCREaSE/(dECREaSE) IN OpERatINg LIaBILItIES:

-  tRAdE PAyABlES (134.13) 46.72 

-  StAtutoRy duES

- othER FinAnCiAl liABilitiES, othER CuRREnt liABilitiES And 
PRoviSionS

177.42 750.91 

CaSH gENERatEd FROM OpERatIONS 4,350.23 1,349.61 

- inCoME tAX PAid (884.52) (5.07)

 NEt CaSH FROM OpERatINg aCtIVItIES 3,465.71 1,344.54 

CaSH FLOWS FROM INVEStINg aCtIVItIES

- PuRChASE/ConStRuCtion oF FiXEd ASSEtS -   (13,876.08)

- PAyMEnt intAnGiBlE CoSt-ACquiREd (1.55) -   

-  dEPoSitS  not ConSidEREd AS CASh And CASh EquivAlEntS (1,703.29) 380.00 

- intERESt ACCRuEd not ConSidEREd AS CASh And CASh 
EquivAlEntS

(32.71) 15.13 

-  AdvAnCES to RElAtEd PARty (5.41) (4.71)

- intERESt inCoME 263.09 50.51 

NEt CaSH FROM INVEStINg aCtIVItIES (1,479.87) (13,435.15)

CaSH FLOW FROM FINaNCINg aCtIVItIES

- PRoCEEdS FRoM iSSuE oF ShARES 2,000.00 2,000.00 

-  loAn tAKEn FRoM indiAn BAnK -   12,058.55 

- REPAyMEnt oF tERM loAn (3,715.70) -   

- intERESt ACCRuEd And duE on BoRRoWinGS (15.44) 103.61 

-  FinAnCE CoSt (1,132.69) (471.38)

NEt CaSH FROM FINaNCINg aCtIVItIES (2,863.83) 13,690.78 

NEt INCREaSE/(dECREaSE) IN CaSH aNd CaSH EQUIVaLENtS (877.99) 1,600.17 

CaSH aNd CaSH EQUIVaLENtS at tHE BEgINNINg OF tHE YEaR 2,006.87 406.70 

CaSH aNd CaSH EQUIVaLENtS at tHE ENd OF tHE YEaR 1,128.88 2,006.87 
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REConCiliAtion oF CASh And CASh EquivAlEntS

 (` in lakhs)

PARtiCulARS notE 
no.

 yEAR 
EndEd 

31.03.2017 

 yEAR 
EndEd 

31.03.2016 

CaSH aNd CaSH EQUIVaLENtS 2.10.1 1,296.43 2,006.87 

Add :   intERESt ACCRuEd on BAnK dEPoSitS hAvinG MAtuRity    

            Within 3 MonthS FRoM ACquiSitionS' dAtE 2.11 0.42 -   

lESS:ChEquE iSSuEd But not PRESEntEd -AXiS BAnK 2.18 (167.97) -   

CaSH aNd CaSH EQUIVaLENtS at tHE ENd OF tHE YEaR 1,128.88 2,006.87 

SUppLEMENtaRY INFORMatION:

REStRiCtEd CASh BAlAnCE (REFER notE 2.10.3) 1.00 1.00 

CoMPonEntS oF CASh And CASh EquivAlEntS ( REFER notE 2.10.1) 1296.43 2,006.87 

notE: CASh And CASh EquivAlEntS  ConSiSt oF   CASh  And  BAnK  
BAlAnCES inCludinG Fds & intERESt ACCRuEd hAvinG MAtuRity 
Within 3 MonthS FRoM thE dAtE oF ACquiSition

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil GhAi
director
din:07669940

RAJEEv MEhRotRA
Chairman

din : 01583143

Sunil KuMAR SinGh
Chief Finance officer

M.no. :ACA 500175

As per our report of even date attached

For A.B. BAnSAl & CoMPAny 
Chartered Accountants

FRn :010538n

(Sunny Kohli)
Partner

M.no : 513283Place : new delhi
dated : 30th June, 2017
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Company Overview

Providing consultancy in green energy having focus on wind and solar projects, generating and selling 
renewable energy for railway consumption by installing windmills and solar plants. Procuring power for indian 
railway, facilitating open access, bilateral purchases and purchase of exchange traded power, coordination with 
regulatory authorities to obtain relief on deemed licencee status of railways. identification and implementation 
of energy efficient technologies for non traction avenues of indian Railways, arranging finances for such projects.

the Company is incorporated and domiciled in india. the address of its registered office is SCoPE Minar, laxmi 
nagar, delhi-110092 (india) and address of its corporate office is RitES Bhawan, no. 1, Sector -29, Gurgaon, 
haryana-122001 (india). the 51% of the shares of the company are held by the RitES ltd (holding Company) 
and their nominees and balance 49% shares are held by the Ministry of Railway and their nominees.

the reporting and functional currency of the company is indian Rupees (inR).  Figures in financial statements 
are presented in ` lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share data and as otherwise stated 
previous period figures have been regrouped/recasted/rearranged, wherever necessary.

the standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of directors on 30.06.2017.

1. SIgNIFICaNt aCCOUNtINg pOLICIES

1.1 gENERaL 

(a) Statement of Compliance

 the financial statements of the Company are being prepared in accordance with indian Accounting 
Standards (ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with 
Companies indian (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (indian Accounting 
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the 
accounting policy hitherto in use.

 these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first financial statements which 
the Company has prepared in accordance with all applicable ind AS. note no. 2.01 explains the way 
the Company adopted ind AS.

(b) Basis of preparation

 the financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis at historical cost, except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value/ amortized cost:

•	 Derivative	financial	instruments,

•	 Which	are	specifically	indicated	in	the	concerned	accounting	policy.

(c) Use of estimates and judgements 

 the preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Future results could differ due 
to changes in these estimates and the difference between the actual result and the estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialize.

Company Overview, Significant accounting policies and Notes to accounts form an integral 
part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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1.2    REVENUE RECOgNItION 

1.2.1 Revenue From Operations

 operating revenue is from various streams viz. consultancy fee and Power Generation.  

 For recognizing revenue from aforesaid streams in the financial statements, general parameters are 
stated below which are applicable to all streams of revenue while specific parameters are stated in the 
accounting policy of the respective stream of revenue.

general parameters

(a) Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of following conditions:-

(i) outcome of the transaction can be estimated or measured reliably. 

(ii) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company.

(iii) the costs incurred and cost to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.  

(b) When outcome of transaction cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized to the extent of 
cost incurred which is recoverable else cost incurred is charged to the Statement of Profit and loss.

(c) When there is uncertainty as to realisability, recognition of revenue is postponed until such uncertainty 
is removed.

(d) Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

1.2.1.1 Consultancy Fee

 Revenue from consultancy (advisory services for power procurement) is recognised as per the terms and 
conditions of the agreement with the beneficiary.

 Revenue from rendering of services is recognized on the basis of stage of completion of each transaction 
using appropriate method. 

 Physical progress, efforts, cost incurred to date bear to the total estimated cost of the transaction, time 
spent, service performed or any other method that management considered appropriate are used to 
measure the stage of completion at the end of the reporting period. 

 Reimbursable and supplies are accounted for on accrual basis.

 in Construction Management/Supervision Contracts, revenue is recognised as a percentage of the value 
of work done/built-up cost of each contract as determined by the Management, pending customer’s 
approval, if any.  

 Mobilization fee is considered as advance until recognized as revenue based on the stage of completion 
of activities/transactions as per the terms of contract/work order.

1.2.1.2 Wind Mill projects (power generation)

 Revenue from sale of power through wind mill projects is recognized on the basis of certificate from 
concerned State Electricity Authority for energy fed in kwh (units) in authority’s system and as per terms 
and conditions of the contract with beneficiary.

1.2.2    Other Income

1.2.2.1 Interest income

 interest income is recognized using effective interest method. 
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1.2.2.2  Others

 other income is accounted for on accrual basis except claims/supplementary claims / counter claims/
interest on delayed payments / awards in favour of the Company/ sale of tenders/ premium on sale of 
licenses etc. which are accounted for on final settlement / realization.

1.3  pROpERtY, pLaNt aNd EQUIpMENt (ppE)

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost i.e., cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight, 
erection and commissioning charges, non-refundable duties and taxes, expenditure during construction 
period, borrowing costs, in case of a qualifying asset, up to the date of acquisition/ installation, net of 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

(a) incidental expenditure during construction period including interest charges incurred up to the date 
of completion, net of interest recovered on mobilisation advance, are capitalized.

(b) Spare valuing more than ` 10 lakh which can be used only in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated 
over the useful life of the spares or principal item of the relevant assets, whichever is lower. other 
spares are charged off to the Statement of Profit and loss in the year of purchase.

(c) Expenditure incurred subsequently relating to property, plant & equipment is capitalised only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(d) the initial estimate of the cost of dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site on which 
PPE is located, the obligation for which is incurred when the item is acquired or as a consequence 
of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories 
during the period, is capitalized as a component of PPE.

1.3.1 depreciation

(a) depreciation on property, plant and equipment are provided on straight line method over their 
estimated useful life determined by the management based on technical assessment. depreciation 
method, useful lives and residual value  are reviewed at the end of each financial year. the useful 
lives of assets are as prescribed in part C of schedule ii of the Companies Act, 2013 except assets 
indicated in sub paragraphs from (d) to (g) below. in respect of additions to/deductions from the 
assets during the year, depreciation is charged on pro rata basis.

(b) the estimated useful lives of the various assets, are as under:-

assets Useful Life 
(Years)

depreciation/
amortization Rate (%)

Furniture 10 10.00
Fixture 5 20.00
office Equipment 5 20.00
Coolers & Air Conditioners 7 14.29
Air Conditioning Plant 15 6.67
Computer hardware 3 33.33
Survey and Equipments 10 10.00
vehicles 8 12.50
Buildings on Freehold land 60 1.67
Windmill plant 25 4.00
intangible Assets 4 25.00
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(c) Any addition or extension, which becomes an integral part of the existing asset and which results 
in increased economic benefits, is capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of that 
asset. 

 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss 
arising on derecognition of the asset which is calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is included in the income statement when the asset 
is derecognised.

(d) lease hold land is amortized over the lease term or the useful life of asset built/installed on such 
land, whichever is shorter.

(e) in respect of building on lease hold land, depreciation is charged over the period of lease of land or 
the useful life sated above on freehold land, whichever is lower.

(f) As per company’s technical assessment, Fixtures, Coolers & Air Conditioners have lower useful 
lives than prescribed in part C of schedule ii of the Companies Act, 2013. therefore depreciation is 
charged at higher rate than prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 Windmill Plants have higher useful life of 25 years than prescribed in part C of schedule ii of the 
Companies Act, 2013 of 22 years. therefore depreciation is charged at lower rate than prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

(g) individual low cost assets of value less than ` 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

(h) A nominal value of ` 1/- is assigned to the fully depreciated assets other than assets specified at (g) 
above.

1.3.2 Capital Work in progress

 Assets which are not ready for the intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related 
incidental expenses and attributable interest.

1.3.3 Capital advances

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance 
sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.

1.4 INtaNgIBLE aSSEtS

 intangible assets acquired/ developed are measured on recognition at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and impairment losses, if any.

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

(a) Software of value less than ` 100,000/- is fully amortized in the year of acquisition
(b) A nominal value of ` 1/- is assigned to the fully amortised assets other than assets specified at (a) 

above.

1.4.1 amortization

 Softwares with estimated useful lives of 4 years are amortized on a straight line basis over the period.

1.5 INCOME taXES

1.5.1 Current Income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities. the tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted in india, at the reporting date.
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 Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax assessments with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

 Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities if, and only if, a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 Additional taxes, interest and/or penalties levied/ imposed by the tax authorities / Appellate authorities 
on finality are recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss.

 Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity).

 Minimum Alternative tax (MAt) paid in accordance with the tax laws in india, which is likely to give future 
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, 
MAt is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably 
and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

1.5.2  deferred tax

 deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

 deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

•	 In	 respect	 of	 deductible	 temporary	 differences	 associated	 with	 investments	 in	 subsidiaries,	
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

 the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity).

 deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.

1.6 RatES & taXES

 overseas taxes on foreign assignments, service tax, value added tax, alike taxes, professional tax, 
property tax, entry tax, labour cess, octroi etc. paid/accrued in india or abroad for which credit are not 
available to the company are charged to the Statement of Profit & loss.



ANNUAL REPORT 2016 - 2017

49

1.7 pREpaYMENtS

 Prepayments towards leasehold land and/or buildings, which are in the nature of operating lease, are 
amortized over the period of the lease agreement.

 PREPAid EXPEnSES And PRioR PERiod AdJuStMEntS 

 Prepaid expenses and prior period adjustments up to ̀  1,00,000/- in each case are treated as expenditure/
income of the year and accounted for to the natural head of accounts.

1.8  CaSH aNd CaSH EQUIVaLENtS 

 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisitions which are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash 
and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

1.9 StatEMENt OF CaSH FLOWS 

 Statement of Cash Flows is made using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts 
or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. the cash 
flows  from operating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.10 EaRNINgS pER SHaRE

 in determining basic earnings per share, net profit attributable to equity shareholders is divided by 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

 in determining diluted earnings per share, net profit attributable to equity shareholders is divided by 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for driving basis earning per share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of 
the period, unless issued at the later date. dilutive potential equity share are determined independently 
for each period presented.

 the number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all 
periods presented for any share splits and bonus share issues including for changes effected prior to the 
approval of the financial statements by the Board of directors.

1.11 IMpaIRMENt OF aSSEtS

1.11.1 Financial assets
 (other than at Fair value)

 the Company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on following financial assets – loans, deposits and trade receivables.

 trade/lease receivables outstanding for a period over 3 years are impaired 100% and others which are 
outstanding for a period of 3 years or less are impaired on a case to case basis, except in cases where 
amount is considered recoverable as per the management. 

 For other receivables impairment is made on the basis of expected credit losses model.

1.11.2  Non Financial assets 
 (tangible and intangible Assets)

 An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use). impairment loss is charged to the Statement 

F
IN

a
N

C
Ia

L Sta
t

E
M

E
N

t
S



Railway EnERgy ManagEMEnt Co. ltd.

50

of Profit & loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. the impairment loss recognized in 
prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount 
and such losses either no longer exists or has decreased. Reversal of impaired loss is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit & loss to the extent of previously recognized or balanced impairment loss. 

1.12  BORROWINg COSt

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets 
are capitalized as part of cost of such assets which necessarily takes substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the Statement of 
Profit & loss.

 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to 
the borrowing costs.

1.13  WRItE OFF

1.13.1 Financial assets

 Such assets including trade/lease receivables are written off when, in the opinion of the management, 
unrealisability has become certain.

1.13.2 Non Financial assets 

 Such assets including property, plant, equipment (PPE), intangible assets, investment property and 
inventory are written off when, in the opinion of the management, such asset has become obsolete, 
damaged beyond repair, stolen and uneconomical to use. 

1.14 pROVISIONS, CONtINgENt LIaBILItIES aNd CONtINgENt aSSEtS

(a) Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is 
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will 
be an outflow of resources.

(b) Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes in any of  the following cases:

(i) a present obligation arising  from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation; or

(ii) a reliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made; or

(iii) a possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resource is remote.

(c) Contingent liability is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement. 

(d) Contingent Assets are not recognized but are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable.

(e) Contingent Assets, Contingent liabilities and Provisions needed against Contingent liabilities are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

1.15 NON-CURRENt aSSEtS HELd FOR SaLE

 the Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts 
will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to 
complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or 
that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within 
one year from the date of classification. non-current assets classified as held for sale is recognized at 
lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.
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1.16 dIVIdENdS

 Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and 
interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the company’s Board of directors.

1.17 FINaNCIaL INStRUMENtS

1.17.1  Initial recognition 

 Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at fair value on 
initial recognition except for trade receivables/ trade payables which are initially measured at transaction 
price. transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss are added or deducted to/from the fair 
value on initial recognition.

1.17.2 Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these are held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding using the effective interest 
rate (EiR) method. the EiR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and 
loss. the losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 the financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is classified at amortised 
cost.

(c) Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

  All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EiR method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the EiR amortisation process.

1.17.3 de-recognition of financial instruments

 A financial asset is derecognised when:

•	 The	rights	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	asset	have	expired,	or

•	 the	Company	has	transferred	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	the	asset,	or	(b)	the	Company	
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

 A financial liability or a part of financial liability is de-recognised from the Balance Sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

1.18  Equity Instrument

 An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Expense relating with increase/decrease in equity instrument and increase 
in authorised share capital are charged to statement of profit & loss in the year in which incurred.
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2.01 First time adoption of Ind aS

 these financial statements of Railway Energy Management Company ltd. for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2017 have been prepared in accordance with ind AS.  For the purpose of transition to ind AS, 
the company has followed guidelines prescribed in ind AS 101-First time adoption of indian Accounting 
Standard, with 1st April, 2015 as transition date and iGAAP as previous GAAP. 

 the transition to ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements, disclosures 
in the notes thereto and accounting policies and principles.  the accounting policies set out in note 1 
have been applied in preparing the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2017 and the comparative information. Exemptions on first time adoption of ind AS availed in 
accordance with ind AS 101 have been set out in note 2.02.  

 there is no change in financials of previous years due to change in accounting policy and correction of 
prior period errors. hence reconciliation between ind As financial statements and iGAAP statements are 
not considered necessary.

2.02 Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind aS 101

 ind AS 101 allows first time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain 
requirements under ind AS.  the company has accordingly applied the following exemptions:-

 deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

 there is no change in functional currency of the Company on the date of transition to ind AS, hence 
Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its  property, plant and equipment 
(PPE) recognized under indian GAAP as deemed cost at transition date (i.e. 01.04.2015) in the financial 
statements.

 

Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017
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 2.04  CapItaL WORK IN pROgRESS  (` in lakhs)

 dESCRIptION  gROSS BLOCK  dEpRECIatION/aMORtISatION  NEt 
BLOCK  OpENINg  addItIONS 

dURINg tHE 
YEaR  

adJUStMENt 
dURINg tHE 

YEaR 

 dELEtIONS 
dURINg tHE 

YEaR  

 tOtaL  OpENINg  FOR tHE 
YEaR 

 adJ 
dURINg 

tHE YEaR 

 adJ 
tHROUgH 
REtaINEd 
EaRNINg 

 dELEtION 
dURINg tHE 

YEaR 

 tOtaL 

 aS at 31.03.2017           -               -                      -                  -             -             -             -             -                -                -             -   -   

 aS at 31.03.2016  1,451.82  13,875.89 15,327.71                -             -             -             -             -                -                -             -   -   

 aS at 01.04.2015           -               -                      -                  -             -             -             -             -                -                -             -   1,451.82 

 2.05  INtaNgIBLE aSSEtS  (` in lakhs)

 dESCRIptION  gROSS BLOCK  dEpRECIatION/aMORtISatION  tOtaL  NEt 
BLOCK OpENINg addItIONS 

dURINg 
tHE YEaR 

 adJ dURINg 
tHE YEaR 

dELEtIONS 
dURINg 

tHE YEaR 

 tOtaL OpENINg  FOR 
tHE 

YEaR 

 adJ 
dURINg 

tHE 
YEaR 

 adJ 
tHROUgH 
REtaINEd 
EaRNINg 

dELEtIONS 
dURINg 

tHE YEaR 

 SOFtWaRE ( aCQUIREd) 

 aS at 31.03.2017           -            1.55                    -                  -   1.55           -          0.39           -                -                -          0.39 1.16 

 aS at 31.03.2016           -               -                      -                  -             -             -             -             -                -                -             -   -   

 aS at 01.04.2015           -               -                      -                  -             -             -             -             -                -                -             -   -   

AGGREGAtE dEPRECiAtion And AMoRtiSAtion hAS BEEn inCludEd undER dEPRECiAtion And AMoRtiSAtion EXPEnSE in thE StAtEMEnt oF 
PRoFit  & loSS

2.06    OtHER NON CURRENt FINaNCIaL aSSEtS  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS Note No aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

intERESt ACCRuEd (inCludinG ACCRuEd But not duE) 
on BAnK dEPoSitS

14.92                      0.02 -

BAnK dEPoSitS hAvinG MAtuRity ovER 12 MonthS 
FRoM REPoRtinG dAtE

2.10.3 421.00                      1.00                            -   

tOtaL 435.92                      1.02                            -   

2.07   dEFERREd taX aSSEtS (NEt)  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

PREliMinARy EXPEnSES                          -                            -   6.35 

BuSinESS loSS (AS PER i.t. ACt, 1961)                          -                            -   1.99 

tOtaL                          -                            -   8.34

2.08    OtHER NON CURRENt aSSEtS  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

AdvAnCE inCoME tAX (nEt oF PRoviSion) 175.93                          -   3.89 

MAt CREdit 709.04 96.73                            -   

tOtaL 884.97 96.73 3.89 
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2.09 CURRENt tRadE RECEIVaBLES  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

UNSECUREd

ConSidEREd Good (RElAtEd PARty) 703.10 653.78 33.83

tOtaL 703.10 653.78 33.83 

2.10 CaSH aNd BaNK BaLaNCES  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

2.10.1 CaSH & CaHS EQUIVaLENtS

BAnK BAlAnCES in :

CuRREnt ACCountS 1.12 5.97 0.21

dEPoSitS # 1,295.31 2000.90 403.94

tOtaL 1,296.43 2,006.87 404.15 

2.10.2 OtHER BaNK BaLaNCES

dEPoSitS ## 2,056.39 773.10 1,154.10 

tOtaL 2,056.39 773.10 1,154.10 

 2.10.3 BaNK BaLaNCES MORE tHaN 12 MONtHS MatURItY (NOtE 2.06)

dEPoSitS ### 421.00 1.00 -   

tOtaL* 421.00 1.00 -   

2.10.4 CHEQUE ISSUEd BUt NOt pRESENtEd ####(NOtE 2.18) (167.97) -   -   

tOtaL CaSH & BaNK BaLaNCES 3,605.85 2,780.97 1,558.25 

 # having maturity within 3 months from the date of acquisition.

## having maturity over 3 months from the date of acquisition and upto 12 months from the reporting date.

### having maturity over 12 months from the reporting date.

#### Book overdraft due to issuance of cheques, which will be cleared against the term deposit available in banks.

*includes restricted cash and bank balances of ` 1 lakh ( Py ` 1 lakh) on account of bank balances held as margin money 
deposits against the guarantee issued by bank.

Refer note no-2.37 for disclosure on specified bank notes as defined in MCA notification G.S.R 308(E) dated 31.03.2017.

2.11 OtHER CURRENt FINaNCIaL aSSEtS  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

INtERESt aCCRUEd (INCLUdINg aCCRUEd BUt NOt dUE) ON:

BAnK dEPoSitS hAvinG MAtuRity:

Within 3 MonthS FRoM thE dAtE oF ACquiSition 0.42 -   2.55 

ovER 3 MonthS FRoM thE dAtE oF ACquiSition And 
uPto 12 MonthS FRoM REPoRtinG dAtE

28.10 10.71 25.86 

AdvAnCES to RElAtEd PARtiES 10.12 4.71 -   

othER AdvAnCE 0.28 -   -   

tOtaL 38.92 15.42 28.41 
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2.12 OtHER CURRENt aSSEtS  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

PREPAid EXPEnSES 7.97 8.49 -   

StAFF iMPRESt 0.02 0.44 -   

SERviCE tAX CREdit 0.75 2.48 7.37 

othER AdvAnCE -   3.08 3.08 

tOtaL 8.74 14.49 10.45 

2.13 EQUItY SHaRE CapItaL  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS  aS at 
31.03.2017 

 aS at 
31.03.2016 

 aS at 
01.04.2015 

2.13.1 aUtHORISEd

150,000,000 (PREviouS yEAR 5,00,00,000 

) Equity ShARES oF ` 10/- EACh

15000.00 5000.00 5000.00

2.13.2 ISSUEd, SUBSCRIBEd 
aNd FULLY paId-Up

70,000,000 (PREviouS yEAR 50,000,000) 

Equity ShARES oF ` 10/- EACh 

7000.00 5000.00 3000.00

7000.00 5000.00 3000.00

2.13.3 RECONCILIatION OF NUMBER OF EQUItY SHaRES

No. of Shares  (` in Lakhs) No. of Shares  (` in Lakhs) No. of Shares  (` in Lakhs) 

oPEninG BAlAnCE 5,00,00,000 5000.00 3,00,00,000 3000.00 1,00,00,000 1000.00

Add/(lESS) duRinG 
thE yEAR

2,00,00,000 2,000.00 2,00,00,000 2000.00 2,00,00,000 2000.00

CloSinG BAlAnCE 7,00,00,000 7000.00 5,00,00,000 5000.00 3,00,00,000 3000.00

2.13.4 RIgHtS, pREFERENCES aNd REStRICtIONS attaCHEd tO EQUItY SHaRES

thE CoMPAny hAS onE ClASS oF Equity ShARES hAvinG A PAR vAluE oF ` 10 EACh. EACh ShAREholdER iS EliGiBlE 
FoR onE votE PER ShARE hEld in CASE Poll iS dEMAndEd By thE MEMBERS in ACCoRdAnCE With thE PRoviSionS 
oF thE CoMPAniES ACt, 2013. in thE EvEnt oF liquidAtion, thE Equity ShAREholdERS ARE EliGiBlE to RECEivE thE 
REMAininG ASSEtS oF thE CoMPAny AFtER diStRiBution oF All PREFEREntiAl AMountS, in PRoPoRtion to thEiR 
ShAREholdinG.

2.13.5 EQUItY SHaRES HELd BY HOLdINg COMpaNY & ItS NOMINEES

No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares

RitES ltd. 3,57,00,000 2,55,00,000 1,53,00,000 

2.13.6 EQUItY SHaRES HELd BY EaCH SHaREHOLdER MORE tHaN 
5% OF SHaRES

RitES ltd 3,56,99,979 2,54,99,985 1,53,00,000 

(50.99%) (50.99%) (50.99%)

indiAn RAilWAyS 3,42,99,986 2,44,99,990 1,46,99,994 

(48.99%) (48.99%) (48.99%)
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2.14 OtHER EQUItY  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS  aS at 
31.03.2017 

 aS at 
31.03.2016 

 aS at 
01.04.2015 

2.14.1 RESERVE & SURpLUS

GEnERAl RESERvE 2,148.44 312.20 (1.31)

2.14.2 OtHER COMpREHENSIVE INCOME -   -   -   

tOtaL 2,148.44 312.20 (1.31)

2.15  BORROWINgS  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

SECuREd tERM loAn FRoM indiAn BAnK * 8,342.85 12,058.55 -   

LESS: CuRREnt MAtuRity oF uPto onE yEAR FRoM 
REPoRtinG dAtE -inCludEd in notE-2.18

766.46 1,004.88 -

tOtaL 7,576.39 11,053.67 -   

* the details of security for the secured term loan  borrowed from Indian Bank are as follows:

a) hypothecation of all the movable assets pertaining to project including but not limited to plant and machinery, 
machinery spares, tools and accessories.

b) hypothecation charge on the Borrower's book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, 
revenues of whatsoever nature and whereever arising, present and future, intangibles, goodwill present and 
future, related to project.

c) A first charge on the company's bank accounts related to project including but not limited to the Escrow 
Account (Escrow) opened with our Bank, where all cash inflows of the company related to the project shall 
be deposited and all proceeds shall be utilised in a manner and priority to be decided by the lenders.

d) Mortgage charges on the rights on the sub-leased land in Jaisalmer, Rajasthan for the purpose of the Project 
- to be executed by way of an equitable mortgage.

* terms of repayment of term loan are as under:-

a) Repayment of loan to be made in 144 monthly installments started from April 2016.

b) Repayment of interest on term loan to be made monthly till closure of term loan.

c) term loan can be prepaid as per the availability of cash generation without any pre-payment charges.

2.16   dEFERREd taX LIaBILItIES (NEt)  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

PREliMinARy EXPEnSES (2.37) (4.53) -   

BuSinESS loSS (AS PER i.t. ACt, 1961) (2.22) (2.13) -   

unABSoRBEd dEPRECiAtion (AS PER i.t. ACt, 1961) (3249.06) (2263.56) -   

diFFEREnCE oF dEPRECiAtion AS PER inCoME tAX ACt And 
CoMPAniES ACt

4432.58 2418.15 -   

tOtaL 1178.93 147.93 -   
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2.17 CURRENt tRadE paYaBLES  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

CREdItORS FOR SUppLIES aNd SERVICES 

MiCRo, SMAll And MEdiuM EntERPRiSES -   -   -   

othER thAn MiCRo, SMAll & MEdiuM 
EntERPRiSES (RElAtEd PARty)

-   134.13 87.41 

tOtaL -   134.13 87.41 

2.18 OtHER CURRENt FINaNCIaL LIaBILItIES  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

AdvAnCE AGAinSt REnEWAl EnERGy PRoJECt 
(RElAtEd PARty)

724.49 724.49                         - 

intERESt ACCRuEd And duE on BoRRoWinGS 88.17 103.61 -   

CuRREnt MAtuRity oF lonG tERM dEBt- REFER 
notE no-2.15

766.46 1,004.88 -   

ChEquE iSSuEd But not PRESEntEd-AXiS BAnK* 167.97 -   -   

SundRy CREditoRS 80.03 19.42 8.49 

EMd/SECuRity dEPoSit 9.57 0.25 0.25 

tOtaL 1,836.69 1,852.65 8.74 

* Book overdraft due to issuance of cheques, which will be cleared against term deposits  available in bank.

2.19 OtHER CURRENt LIaBILItIES  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS aS at 
31.03.2017

aS at 
31.03.2016

aS at 
01.04.2015

StAtutoRy liABilitiES 118.47 11.02 0.15 

tOtaL 118.47 11.02 0.15 

2.20 REVENUE FROM OpERatIONS  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS  NOtE NO.        YEaR ENdEd  
         31.03.2017 

       YEaR ENdEd  
          31.03.2016 

SaLE OF SERVICES

ConSultAnCy FEE (GRoSS)               2.36        4,452.57        1,164.54 

lESS: SERviCE tAX          (579.92)          (146.38)

ConSultAnCy FEE (nEt) 3,872.65 1,018.16 

pOWER gENERatION

SAlE oF ElECtRiCAl EnERGy - 
ElECtRiCity

              2.35 1,694.27                 692.15 

tOtaL 5,566.92 1,710.31 

2.21 OtHER INCOME  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS        YEaR ENdEd  
         31.03.2017 

     YEaR ENdEd  
       31.03.2016 

intERESt EARnEd on:

          -  dEPoSitS With BAnK 263.09 50.51 

        - inCoME tAX REFund                           -                       0.18 

MiSCEllAnEouS inCoME* 19.01                   43.20 

tOtaL 282.10                   93.89 

* Sale of tender document
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2.22  OtHER EXpENSES  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS NOtE NO.  YEaR ENdEd  
 31.03.2017 

 YEaR ENdEd  
 31.03.2016 

lEGAl  & PRoFESSionAl EXPEnSES 6.08 6.47 

oFFiCE EXPEnSES 2.68 1.45 

tRAvElinG EXPEnSES 11.77 9.25 

AuditoRS' REMunERAtion 2.23 1.64 1.35 

AuditoRS' out oF PoCKEt EXPEnSES 2.23 0.15 0.15 

AdvERtiSinG EXPEnSES 55.46 11.64 

PRintinG & StAtionARy 2.31 1.77 

inSuRAnCE 13.77 4.13 

RAtES & tAXES 3.46 1.11 

ConSultAnCy ChARGES 97.07 8.52 

intERnAl Audit FEE 0.31  - 

RoC FEES FoR inCREASE in AuthoRiSEd ShARE CAPitAl 90.00  - 

BAnK ChARGES 0.10  - 

MiSCEllAnEouS EXPEnSES (CoSt oF vEhiClE hiRinG, 
SPonSoRShiP, MEEtinG EXPEnSE, EtC.)

32.61 15.45

tOtaL 317.41 61.29 

2.23 aUdItORS' REMUNERatION

StAtutoRy Audit FEE 1.04 0.75 

tAX Audit FEE 0.60 0.60 

 tOtaL 1.64 1.35 

aUdItORS' REMUNERatION 1.64 1.35 

AuditoRS' out oF PoCKEt EXPEnSES 0.15 0.15 

2.24 taX EXpENSE  (` in lakhs) 

paRtICULaRS NOtE NO.  YEaR ENdEd  
 31.03.2017 

 YEaR ENdEd  
 31.03.2016 

CuRREnt tAX - (MAt) 2.31 612.31 96.73 

MAt CREdit EntitlEMEnt (612.31) (96.73)

tOtaL-(a) -   -   

dEFERREd tAX ChARGE- (B) 2.31 1,030.99 156.27

tOtaL (a)+(B) 1,030.99 156.27 
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dISCLOSURES aS pER INdIaN aCCOUNtINg StaNdaRdS (INd aS):

2.25 disclosures on operating segments (Indian accounting Standards-108) are as follows:

 operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information 
is available which is being evaluated regularly by the Chief operating decision Maker (CodM) in 
deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. the company’s chief operating decision 
maker is the Chief Executive officer and Chairman.

2.25.1 Company has identified two operational reportable segments based on operations being carried out 
which are as under:-  

	 • Power Generation

	 • Consultancy

2.25.2 the company entire operation is within geographical region of india.

2.25.3 the accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied 
to record revenue & expenditure in individual segments, as set out in the note of significant accounting 
policies. 

2.25.4 Revenue & direct expenses in relation to segments are allocated based on items that are individually 
identifiable to that segment while the remaining costs are categorized as unallocated expense as the 
underlying services are used inter-changeably. 

2.25.5 operational Segment year Ended 31.03.2017 

 (` in lakhs) 

description Year Ended 31.03.2017 Year Ended 31.03.2016 total
power 

generation
Consultancy 

Services
total power 

generation
Consultancy 

Services
Revenue 1694.27 3872.65 5566.92 692.15 1018.16 1710.31
identifiable operating 
expenses

2168.83 500.42 2669.25 983.74 322.92 1306.66

Segmental profit/(loss) from 
operations

(474.56) 3372.23 2897.67 (291.59) 695.24 403.65

Add: interest income* 263.09 50.69
Add: other income ** 19.01 43.20
less: un-allocable Expenses 312.54 27.76
net Profit Before tax 2867.23 469.78
less: income tax (including 
deferred tax)

1030.99 156.27

net Profit After tax 1836.24 313.51
Additional information:
depreciation and 
amortisation

613.11 0.43 613.54 281.42 .01 281.43

non-cash expenses other 
than depreciation and 
amortization

nil nil nil nil nil nil

impairment losses nil nil nil nil nil nil
Reversal of impairment losses nil nil nil nil nil nil
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 (` in lakhs) 

description Year Ended 31.03.2017 Year Ended 31.03.2016 total
power 

generation
Consultancy 

Services
total power 

generation
Consultancy 

Services
assets & Liabilities
PPE 14433.15 0.14 14433.29 15046.29 0.18 15046.47
intangible Assets nil 1.16 1.16 nil nil nil
Current Assets nil 713.22 713.22 269.85 400.21 670.06
total Segmental assets 14433.15 714.52 15147.67 15316.14 400.39 15716.53
Add: un allocable  Assets**** 4711.25 2891.35
total assets 19858.92 18607.88
non Current liabilities 7576.39 nil 7576.39 11053.67 nil 11053.67
Current liabilities 1579.12 70.50 1649.62 1843.25 131.64 1974.89
total Segmental Liabilities 9155.51 70.50 9226.01 12896.92 131.64 13028.56
Add: unallocable liabilities**** 1484.47 267.12
total Liabilities 10710.48 13295.68

*  interest income includes interest on bank deposits and income tax refund etc.
** other income includes sale of tender document.
***  no impairment and its reversal has been recognized in other Comprehensive income (oCi) during the year ended 31.03.2017 and 

31.03.2016
****unallocable assets and liabilities are common in nature for all and cannot be allocated to a specific segment. 

2.25.6 Entire Revenue of ` 5566.92 lakhs (Previous year `1710.31 lakhs) is derived from a single customer.

2.26 Related party disclosures (Indian accounting Standards-24) are as follows:-

2.26.1 Related Party

2.26.1.1Holding Company 

Name Country Holding as on
31.03.17 31.03.16

M/s RitES  ltd india 51% 51%

2.26.1.2Ministry of Railways

Name Country Holding as on
31.03.17 31.03.16

indian Railways india 49% 49%

2.26.1.3 Key Managerial personnel- Holding Company

Chairman & Managing director (Chief Executive Officer)
Shri Rajeev Mehrotra

Whole time directors
Shri Arbind Kumar, director Projects 
Shri Ajay Kumar Gaur, director Finance (Chief Finance officer)
Shri S.B. Malik, director technical (upto 30.11.2016)
Shri Mukesh Rathore, director technical (From 01.12.2016)
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government Nominee directors
Shri Ravindra nath Misra, director (From 31.10.2016)
Shri A.P. dwivedi, director 
Shri Ravi Shanker Kochak, director (upto 31.07.2016)

Non-Executive (Independent) directors
Smt. vidya Rajiv yeravdekar (From 01.04.2016)
Shri Anil Kumar Goel (From 01.04.2016)
Shri Satish Sareen (From 01.04.2016)

Company Secretary

Shri P.t. Mittal, Company Secretary

2.26.1.4 Key Managerial personnel of the company

Chairman
Shri Rajeev Mehrotra

directors
Shri Arbind Kumar
Shri h. K. Bali, (upto 30.11.2016)
Shri Anil Ghai ( From 01.12.2016)
Ms niva Singh, (upto16.02.2017)
Ms Anju Ranjan, (From 17.02.2017) 
Shri Sudhir Kumar Garg

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Shri Sudhir Kumar Saxena

Chief Finance Officer(CFO)
Shri Sunil Kumar Singh, (From 05.01.2017)

2.26.2  transactions and Balance with Related parties

 outstanding balances from the related parties are unsecured and considered good which are due 
towards ordinary course of business and are being realized within reasonable time.

2.26.2.1transactions with Key Management personnel:

 during the current financial year, salary & other benefits viz. PF, pension etc. of CEo & CFo are being 
paid by RitES ltd. (holding company) after deduction of tdS as per provisions of income tax Act, 1961. 
Gross salary is charged based on advice provided by the holding company.

(` in lakhs) 

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

Year Ended 
31.03.2016

- Basic Pay including dA 24.10 18.29

- other Allowances & retiral benefit 14.01 19.02
tOtaL 38.11 37.31
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2.26.3 transactions with holding company during the year 
  (` in lakhs) 

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

Year Ended 
31.03.2016

- Fee for services obtained (Management Contract) 480.35 287.07
- Reimbursable Expense 48.13 44.84
- Equity investment 1020.00 1020.00
- Advance Against Renewable Projects          - 369.49

1548.48 1721.40

Year End Balances

(` in lakhs) 

particulars as on 
31.03.2017

as on 
31.03.2016

- trade Payable - 91.52
- Reimbursable (Payable for Expense) 39.61 42.61
- Equity Share Capital 3570.00 2550.00
-  Advance against Renewable Project 369.49 369.49

tOtaL 3979.10 3053.62

2.26.4 transactions with Rites Infrastructure Services Limited (subsidiary of holding company) during the year:
(` in lakhs) 

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

Year Ended 
31.03.2016

- Reimbursable (tax Payment) 2.71 -
2.71 Nil

Year End Balances
(` in lakhs) 

particulars as on  
31.03.2017

as on  
31.03.2016

- Reimbursable (Payable for tax Payment) - -
tOtaL Nil Nil

2.26.5 transactions with Ministry of Railways during the year
(` in lakhs) 

particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2017

Year  Ended 
31.03.2016

Revenue
- Consultancy 3872.65 1018.16
-  Power Generation 1694.27 692.15
Equity investment        980.00 980.00
Advance against Renewable Project - 355.00

tOtaL 6546.92 3045.31
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Year End Balances
(` in lakhs) 

particulars as on  
31.03.2017

as on  
31.03.2016

trade Receivable 
- Consultancy 703.10 392.43
- Power Generation nil 261.36
other Receivables(Advances) 10.12 4.70
Equity Share Capital 3430.00 2450.00
Advance against Renewable Project 355.00 355.00

tOtaL 4498.22 3463.49

2.26.6 government related entities 

  Government of india (Goi) is holding 100% equity shares of the holding company (RitES ltd), which are 
held by President of india acting through Ministry of Railways and its nominees. Goi controls the holding 
company through Ministry of Railways.

  the Company has made various transactions with the Ministry of Railways. the transactions with them 
are disclosed under note no.2.26.5.

2.27  disclosures on Earning per Share (EpS) (Indian accounting Standard-112) are as follows:- 

particulars Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

A net Profit for the year (` in lakhs) 1836.24 313.51
B Amount available for Equity Shareholder 

(` in lakhs)
1836.24 313.51

C Weighted average number of Equity Shares(nos) 500,54,795 300,54,645
d Earnings Per Share(Basic & diluted) (B)/(C) ` 3.67 ` 1.04
E Face value per equity share ` 10/- ` 10/-

2.28 disclosures on provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets (Indian accounting 
Standards-37) are as follows:

2.28.1 Contingent Liabilities

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts as certified by the Management are ` nil 
(previous year ` nil).

(b) other money for which the company is contingently liable

 on account of wheeling & transmission charges for 26 MW wind mill plant of company at Jaisalmer 
for the period January 2017 to March 2017 which are payable to Rajasthan state utilities amounting 
to `121.16 lakhs (Previous year ` nil)-Refer note no. 2.35.

2.28.2 Capital Commitments

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account as certified by the 
management and not provided will be `3.07 lakhs (Previous year` nil).

2.29 disclosure on Borrowing Cost (Indian accounting Standards-23) 

the company has borrowed term loan of `12058.55 lakhs from indian Bank for setting up 26 MW Wind 
Mill plants at Jaisalmer. the entire amount of loan was borrowed during the financial year 2015-16 and 
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company has incurred interest cost of `1132.69 lakhs (Previous year `580.49 lakhs) during the current 
year.

2.30.1 FINaNCIaL INStRUMENtS 

2.30.1 Financial Instruments by category

  the carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories wise as on 31st March, 2017 are 
as under:

`  in lakhs

particulars total carrying 
value

amortised 
Cost

Financial assets/liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets/liabilities at 
fair value through OCI

designated 
upon initial 
recognition 

Mandatory designated 
upon initial 
recognition 

Mandatory

Financial assets:

Cash and Bank Balance* 3605.85 - - 3605.85 - -

trade Receivables* 703.10 703.10 - - - -

other Financial Assets* 53.84 53.84 - - - -

total 4362.79 756.94 - 3605.85 - -

Financial Liabilities:

trade Payables* - - - - - -

Borrowings* 7576.39 7576.39 - - - -

other Financial 
liabilities*

1668.72 1668.72 - - - -

total 9245.11 9245.11 - - - -

the carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories wise as on 31st  March, 2016 are 
as under:

` in lakhs

particulars total 
carrying 

value

amortised 
Cost

Financial assets/liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss

Financial assets/liabilities at 
fair value through OCI

designated 
upon initial 
recognition 

Mandatory designated 
upon initial 
recognition 

Mandatory

Financial assets:

Cash and Bank Balance* 2780.97 - - 2780.97 - -

trade Receivables* 653.78 653.78 - - - -

other Financial Assets* 15.44 15.44 - - - -

total 3450.19 669.22 - 2780.97 - -

Financial Liabilities:

trade Payables* 134.13 134.13 - - - -

Borrowings* 11053.67 11053.67 - - - -

other Financial liabilities* 1852.65 1852.65 - - - -

total 13040.45 13040.45 - - - -

* the carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, short term loans, other current financial 
assets and liabilities are considered to be same as their amortized cost due to their short-term nature. As per practice, Security 
deposits and Retention money represent source of protection with respect to contract performance rather than a source of 
financing, hence presented at transaction value.
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2.30.2 Fair value hierarchy and valuation technique

 to provide an indication about the reliability of used in determining fair value, the company has classified 
its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the indian Accounting Standard (ind AS 113) 
on fair value measure.

 Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active markets is determined using 
valuation techniques and observable inputs for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (observable 
inputs).

 Fair value hierarchies of assets & liabilities as on March 31, 2017 are as follows:
(` in lakhs)

particulars as on 
31.03.2017    

Fair value measurement at end of the 
reporting period using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3605.85 3605.85 - -

 Fair value hierarchies of assets & liabilities as on March 31, 2016 are as follows:
  (` in lakhs)

particulars as on 
31.03.2016   

Fair value measurement at end of the 
reporting period using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and Bank Balances 2780.97 2780.97 - -

2.30.3 Financial Risk Management

 Financial Risk Factors

 the Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
the company’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential 
adverse effects on its financial performance. the Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly 
by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from few customers.

 Market Risk

 the Company operates in PAn india and company has no transactions in foreign currency, therefore 
there is no foreign exchange risk.

 Credit Risk

 Credit Risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. 
Primarily exposure to the credit risk at the end of current and previous years is from trade receivables 
amounting to ` 703.10lakhs (Previous year `653.78lakhs) which are typically unsecured. Credit risk has 
always is being managed by the company through continuously monitoring the outstanding dues from 
the customers. All receivables of the company are from various Zonal Railways hence credit risk is bare 
minimum.
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 no significant credit risk on cash and Bank Balance of ` 3605.85 lakhs (Previous year ` 2780.97lakhs)  is 
expected as  company parks surplus funds  with Schedule Banks having good credit adequacy ratio and 
least nPA as determined by RBi and guidelines of the company.  Company has parked the funds in fixed 
deposits of`3772.70 lakhs (Previous year ` 2775.00 lakhs) with Schedule banks with negligible credit 
risks.

 Liquidity Risk

 the company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is 
generated from operations. the company has outstanding borrowings including interest accrued from 
indian Bank amounting to `8431.02 lakhs (Previous year `12162.16 lakhs). the instalment falling due 
for re-payment within one year from the reporting date is amounting to `766.46 lakhs (Previous year 
`1004.88lakhs). the company has a working capital of `2148.42lakhs (Previous year `1369.58lakhs)
including cash and bank balances of ` 3605.85lakhs (Previous year `2780.97lakhs). the company 
believes that the working capital and other liquid assets are sufficient to meet its current requirements. 
Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

2.31 disclosures on Income taxes (Indian accounting Standard-12) are as follows:

2.31.1 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises

(` in lakhs)

particulars Year Ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

income tax Expenses

-  Current taxes (under MAt provision) 612.31 96.73

-  deferred tax(net) 1030.99 156.27

-  MAt Credit Entitlement (612.31) (96.73)

 Entire deferred tax for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 relates to origination and 
reversals of temporary differences.  

2.31.2 a reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income 
tax rate to the income before income taxes is summarized below:

(` in lakhs)

particulars Year Ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

profit Before Income taxes On Normal Business 2867.23 469.78

Enacted tax Rates in india on normal income 34.61% 33.06%

Computed Expected tax Expense 992.35 155.31

tax Effect due to change in tax Rate 7.33 -

Effect of non-deductible Expenditures (ndE) 31.31 0.96

Current tax Expense 1030.99 156.27
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 the following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2017, March 
31, 2016 and April 1, 2015:

(` in lakhs)

particulars as at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

income tax Assets 788.24 5.07 11.80

Current income tax liabilities 612.31 101.35 7.91

Net Current Income tax assets/(Liability) 
at the end

175.93 (96.28) 3.89

 the gross movement in the current income tax asset/(liability) for the year ended March 31, 2017 and 
March 31, 2016 is as follows:

(` in lakhs)

particulars Year Ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

net current income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning (96.28) -

income tax paid 884.52 5.07

Current income tax expense (Ref. note 2.24) (612.31) (96.73)

interest paid under section 234 C under income tax - (4.62)

Net Current Income tax asset/(Liability) at the end 175.93 (96.28)

(` in lakhs)

the tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax asset and 
liabilities are as follows:

particulars as at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

differed Income tax assets:

Preliminary Expense 2.37 4.53 6.35

Business loss 2.22 2.13 1.99

un-Absorbed depreciation 3249.06 2263.56 -

total deferred Income tax assets - I 3253.65 2270.22 8.34

differed Income tax Liabilities:

Property Plant & Equipment, Furniture & 
Fixtures, (depreciation diff)

4432.58 2418.15 -

total deferred Income tax Liabilities – II 4432.58 2418.15 -

deferred income tax Assets after set off - - 8.34

deferred income tax liabilities after set off 1178.93 147.93 -
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deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the company has a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

the ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future 
taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management 
considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, 
and tax planning strategies in making the assessment.

Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods 
in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Group will realize 
the benefits of those deductible differences. the amount of deferred income tax assets considered 
realizable, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry 
forward period are reduced.

the gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 
31, 2016 are as follows:

(` in lakhs)

particulars Year ended 

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

net deferred income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning (147.93) 8.34

Credit/(Change) relating to temporary differences (1030.99) (156.27)

Net deferred Income tax asset/(Liability) at the end (1178.93) (147.93)

 the composition of deferred liabilities assets relating to temporary differences during the year ended 
March 31, 2017 are primarily on account of property plant and equipment, Preliminary expenses, Brought 
forwarded business losses & un-absorbed depreciation.

2.32 disclosures on presentation of Financial Statements (Indian accounting Standard-1) are as follows:

2.32.1 Capital Management

 the Company’s objective for capital management is to maximize shareholders value, safeguard business 
continuity and support the growth of the Company. the Company determines the capital requirement 
based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. the funding 
requirements are primarily being met through operating cash flows generated.

2.32.2 Subsequent Event -dividends

 dividends declared by the Company are based on net Worth or Profits After tax as reported in the 
financial statements of the Company and guidelines issued by dPE/Presidential directives. the Board 
of directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend of ` 0.525 per share to 7 crore equity 
shares in respect of the year ending 31.03.2017 subject to approval of shareholders in Annual General 
Meeting. if approved, the dividend would result in a cash outflow of ` 442.92lakhs inclusive of dividend 
distribution tax of `74.92lakhs.

Other disclosures 

2.33 details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro and Small Enterprise 
development Act, 2006* are given on the basis of information available with the management.

F
IN

a
N

C
Ia

L Sta
t

E
M

E
N

t
S



Railway EnERgy ManagEMEnt Co. ltd.

70

(` in lakhs)

S. 
No.

particulars as at 
31.03.2017

as at 
31.03.2016

a the principal amount and the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year

– Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

– interest due on above
- -

b the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
Section 16 of the Micro and Small Enterprise development 
Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year. 

- -

c the amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding 
the interest specified under Micro and Small Enterprises 
development Act, 2006

- -

d the amount of interest due and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year

- -

e the amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under Section 23 of Micro and Small Enterprise 
development Act, 2006. 

- -

*the company is providing consultancy services accordingly procurement made company are mainly 
for stationery and other administration work through RitES ltd (holding Company).

2.34 Sundry creditors, customers advances, amounts recoverable, security deposits receivable/payable are 
subject to confirmation.

2.35 deferment of Income & Expense

the company has installed 26 MW Wind Mill plant at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan for utilisation of energy 
generated from Wind Mill Plant by WCR for a period of 25 years in accordance with Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) signed between West Central Railways( WCR) and REMCl.the Wind mill Plant 
was commissioned on 16.10.2015 and since then energy generated from Wind Mill Plant is being 
continuously utilised by WCR  up to 09.01.2017 at three traction Sub Stations (tSS) (Bharatpur, hindaun 
& Ramganj Mandi) in Rajasthan as a consumer of Rajasthan diSCoM  Jaipur vidyut vitran nigam limited 
(Jvvnl).

With effect from 10.01.2017, status of WCR has been changed from consumer to “deemed distribution 
licensee” in Rajasthan. WCR started taking power at Six tSS as a deemed distribution licensee through 
open access route from M/s JitPl which includes 3 tSS (Bharatpur, hinduan & Ramganj) where WCR 
was taking Wind power from REMCl. due to  change  in status of WCR from consumer to deemed 
distribution utility licensee, accountal/methodology for utilization of energy generated by Wind Mill 
Plant have gone underchanged. they (WCR) are contesting that after starting of open access connection 
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at above mentioned three tSSs, existing connection have been disconnected from M/s Jvvnl & final 
energy bill of M/s Jvvnl have been passed with the set-off of wind power up to dec’16 and thereafter 
the Kota division has paid the due amount of metered supply during Jan & Feb ’17 to M/s JitPl and 
hence WCR has not been  agreed to pay bills for energy generated from Wind Mill Plant for the period 
from January 2017 to March 17.

in present circumstances, there is uncertainty regarding realisation of revenue.  As per ind AS -18 when 
there is uncertainty as to realisability, recognition of revenue is postponed until such uncertainty is 
removed. therefore revenue amounting to ` 450.78 for the period January’17 to March’17 lakhs has 
been postponed and not recognised during the current financial year. 

Wheeling and transmission charges payable to Rajasthan state utilities are directly paid by WCR and 
deduction for the same is made by WCR in gross bill and only net amount i.e. after deduction towards 
wheeling & transmission is paid to REMCl on monthly basis. therefore Wheeling & transmission charges 
for the corresponding period i.e. January 2017 to March 2017 which are payable to Rajasthan state 
utilities has not been recognized and shown as contingent liability under note no. 2.28.

2.36 Professional charges/consultancy fees amounting to ` 57.04 lakhs for the period January 2016 to March 
2016 in respect of professional services provided to South Eastern Railway (SER) is crystallized and due 
in the month of July 2016 since Bi-Partite agreement for professional charges between SER and REMCl 
has been signed in July 2016 and therefore accounted the same during current year.

2.37 detail of specified bank notes or other denomination note (odn) as defined in the MCA notification 
G.S.R. 308(E) dated March, 31, 2017 are as under:-

particulars SBNs OdN total

Closing cash on hand as on 08.11.2016 nil nil nil

(+) Permitted receipts nil nil nil

(-) Permitted payments nil nil nil

(-) Amounts deposited in Banks nil nil nil

Closing cash on hand as on 30.12.2016 nil nil nil

2.38 Recent accounting pronouncements

 Standard issued but not yet effective

 in March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Company (indian Accounting Standards) 
(Amendment Rules, 2017) notifying amendment to ind AS, “Statement of cash flows”. this amendment is 
in accordance with the recent amendment made by international Accounting Standards Board (iASB) to 
iAS 7, “Statement of cash flows”. this amendment is applicable to the company from April 1, 2017.

 amendment to Ind aS 7

 the amendment to ind AS 7 requires the entity to provide disclosures that would enable users of 
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both 
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between 
the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to 
meet the disclosure requirements.  the company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and 
the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.
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COMMENtS OF tHE COMptROLLER aNd aUdItOR gENERaL OF INdIa UNdER SECtION 143(6)(b) OF tHE 

COMpaNIES aCt, 2013 ON tHE FINaNCIaL StatEMENtS OF RaILWaY ENERgY MaNagEMENt COMpaNY 

LIMItEd FOR tHE YEaR ENdEd 31 MaRCH 2017.

the preparation of financial statements of Railway Energy Management Company limited for the year ended 31 

March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is 

the responsibility of the management of the company. the Statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of india under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on these financial 

statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on 

auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. this is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit 

Report dated 30 June 2017.

i, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of india, have decided not to conduct the supplementary 

audit of the financial statements of Railway Energy Management Company limited for the year ended 31 March 

2017 under section 143 (6) (a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of india

(B.R. Mondal)

place : New delhi principal director of audit

dated : 24 July, 2017 Railway Commercial, New delhi
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